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PART | - FINANCIAL INFORMATION
ITEM 1. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

We refer to Highwoods Properties, Inc. as the “Canyy’ Highwoods Realty Limited Partnership as ti@pérating Partnershipthe
Company’s common stock as “Common Stock” or “Comn&iares,” the Company’s preferred stock as “Prefe@tock” or Preferre
Shares,” the Operating Partnership’s common patiigrinterests as “Common Units,” the Operatingtrigaships preferred partnerst
interests as “Preferred Units” and in-service prbee (excluding forsale residential condominiums) to which the Compang/or th
Operating Partnership have title and 100.0% owmgmights as the “Wholly Owned Properties.” Refares to “we” and “our’mean th
Company and the Operating Partnership, collectjugijess the context indicates otherwise.

The partnership agreement provides that the Opgr&artnership will assume and pay when due, ortngise the Company for paym
of, all costs and expenses relating to the ownprsinid operations of, or for the benefit of, the @prg Partnership. The partners
agreement further provides that all expenses o€tirapany are deemed to be incurred for the beotefite Operating Partnership.

Certain information contained herein is presentedfaApril 26, 2012, the latest practicable date prior to the filingtlois Quarterl
Report.
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HIGHWOODS PROPERTIES, INC.
Consolidated Balance Sheets
(Unaudited and in thousands, except share anchpee slata)

March 31, December 31,
2012 2011
Assets:
Real estate assets, at cost:
Land $ 368,12: $ 367,87(
Buildings and tenant improvements 3,137,65i 3,127,98.
Land held for development 105,20t 105,20t
3,610,98! 3,601,06!
Less-accumulated depreciation (911,51) (895,77
Net real estate assets 2,699,47. 2,705,28:
For-sale residential condominiums 3,80¢ 4,751
Real estate and other assets, net, held for sale 7,55¢€ 13,26(
Cash and cash equivalents 12,21 11,18¢
Restricted cash 20,75 26,66¢
Accounts receivable, net of allowance of $3,413 $8&48, respectively 27,23( 30,09:
Mortgages and notes receivable, net of allowan&la® and $61, respectively 17,11¢ 18,60(
Accrued straight-line rents receivable, net ofwalace of $1,420 and $1,294, respectively 110,97 105,61
Investments in and advances to unconsolidate defd 99,06 100,36
Deferred financing and leasing costs, net of acdarad amortization of $67,662 and $63,059, respelsti 129,20: 128,39(
Prepaid expenses and other assets 43,04 36,78
Total Assets $ 3,170,44 $  3,180,99
Liabilities, Noncontrolling Interests in the Operating Partnership and Equity:
Mortgages and notes payable $ 1,903,970 $ 1,903,21:
Accounts payable, accrued expenses and otheiitiiedil 122,54! 148,82:
Financing obligations 31,11( 31,44«
Total Liabilities 2,057,63 2,083,47:
Commitments and contingencies
Noncontrolling interests in the Operating Partngrsh 124,20: 110,65!
Equity:
Preferred Stock, $.01 par value, 50,000,000 awtbdrshares;

8.625% Series A Cumulative Redeemable PreferredeStiiguidation preference $1,000 per share), 28,0

shares issued and outstanding 29,071 29,077
Common Stock, $.01 par value, 200,000,000 authdshares;

73,608,571 and 72,647,697 shares issued and aditsjanespectively 73¢€ 72¢
Additional paid-in capital 1,818,75! 1,803,99
Distributions in excess of net income availabledommon stockholders (860,12() (845,85))
Accumulated other comprehensive loss (4,376 (5,739

Total Stockholders’ Equity 984,06 982,21
Noncontrolling interests in consolidated affiliates 4,53¢ 4,64¢

Total Equity 988,60t 986,85¢
Total Liabilities, Noncontrolling Interests in ti@perating Partnership and Equity $ 317044 § 3,180,99.

See accompanying notes to consolidated financitdsients.
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HIGHWOODS PROPERTIES, INC.
Consolidated Statements of Income

(Unaudited and in thousands, except per share asjoun

Rental and other revenues
Operating expenses:
Rental property and other expenses
Depreciation and amortization
General and administrative
Total operating expenses
Interest expense:
Contractual
Amortization of deferred financing costs
Financing obligations

Other income:
Interest and other income

Income from continuing operations before dispositia of condominiums and equity in earnings/(lossesf o

unconsolidated affiliates
Gains on for-sale residential condominiums
Equity in earnings/(losses) of unconsolidated iatfis
Income from continuing operations
Discontinued operations:
Income from discontinued operations
Net gains on disposition of discontinued operations

Net income

Net (income) attributable to noncontrolling intaseim the Operating Partnership
Net (income) attributable to noncontrolling inteseim consolidated affiliates

Dividends on Preferred Stock

Net income available for common stockholders

Earnings per Common Share — basic:
Income from continuing operations available for coom stockholders
Income from discontinued operations available funmon stockholders
Net income available for common stockholders
Weighted average Common Shares outstanding — basic

Earnings per Common Share — diluted:
Income from continuing operations available for coom stockholders
Income from discontinued operations available fanmon stockholders
Net income available for common stockholders
Weighted average Common Shares outstanding —dlilute

Dividends declared per Common Share

Net income available for common stockholders:
Income from continuing operations available for coom stockholders
Income from discontinued operations available funmon stockholders
Net income available for common stockholders

See accompanying notes to consolidated financgdsients.

Three Months Ended March 31,

2012 2011
129,94 114,35
46,12 40,93
38,36 33,55¢
9,67¢ 7,79:
94,15¢ 82,28
23,94 22,43
902 821
(49) 201
24,80: 23,54
2,23( 1,87¢
2,23( 1,87¢
13,21 10,39¢
65 38
(162) 1,467
13,11 11,90¢
83 54(
5,13 —
5,217 54(
18,33: 12,44:
(827) (507)
(184) (129)
(627) 1,677
16,60« 10,13¢
0.1€ 0.1z
0.07 0.01
0.22 0.14
72,83 71,81
0.1€ 0.1z
0.07 0.01
0.22 0.14
76,69¢ 75,79
0.42¢ 0.42¢
11,73 9,62
4,961 51z
16,60« 10,13¢
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HIGHWOODS PROPERTIES, INC.
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income
(Unaudited and in thousands)

Comprehensive income/(loss):
Net income
Other comprehensive income/(loss):
Unrealized gain/(loss) on tax increment financiogd
Unrealized gains on cash flow hedges
Amortization of settled cash flow hedges
Total other comprehensive income/(loss)
Total comprehensive income
Less-comprehensive (income) attributable to nomodimtg interests

Comprehensive income attributable to the Company

See accompanying notes to consolidated financitdsients.

Three Months Ended March 31,

2012 2011
18,33: 12,44:
287 (135)

1,10¢ —
(33 (29)

1,35¢ (164)
19,69( 12,27¢
(1,011) (630)
18,67¢ 11,64¢
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Balance at December 31, 2011

Issuances of Common Stock, net

Conversions of Common Units to Common Stock

Dividends on Common Stock

Dividends on Preferred Stock

Adjustment of noncontrolling interests in the Opierg

Partnership to fair value

Distributions to noncontrolling interests in coridated

affiliates

Issuances of restricted stock, net

Share-based compensation expense

Net (income) attributable to noncontrolling intdee the

Operating Partnership

Net (income) attributable to noncontrolling inteees

consolidated affiliates
Comprehensive income:

Net income

Other comprehensive income

Total comprehensive income

Balance at March 31, 2012

Balance at December 31, 2010

Issuances of Common Stock, net

Conversions of Common Units to
Common Stock

Dividends on Common Stock

Dividends on Preferred Stock

HIGHWOODS PROPERTIES, INC.
Consolidated Statements of Equity
(Unaudited and in thousands, except share amounts)

Adjustment of noncontrolling interests in

the Operating Partnership to fair

value

Distributions to noncontrolling interests

in consolidated affiliates

Issuances of restricted stock, net

Share-based compensation expense

Net (income) attributable to
noncontrolling interests in the
Operating Partnership

Net (income) attributable to
noncontrolling interests in
consolidated affiliates

Comprehensive income:

Net income
Other comprehensive loss
Total comprehensive income

Balance at March 31, 2011

Series A Distributions in
Cumulative Non-Controlling Excess of Net
Redeemable Additional Accumulated Interests in Income Available
Number of Common Preferred Paid-In Other Compre- Consolidated for Common
Common Shares Stock Shares Capital hensive Loss Affiliates Stockholders Total

72,647,69 $ 72€ $ 29,071 $1,803,99 $ (5,739 % 4,64¢ $ (845,85) $ 986,85¢
807,48: 8 —_ 26,63¢ —_ —_ —_ 26,64
2,00(¢ = = 63 = = = 63
—_ —_ —_ —_ —_ —_ (30,967 (30,967
= = = = = = (627) (627)
— — — (14,360 — — — (14,369
— — — — — (291) — (291)
151,39 — — — — — — —
— 2 — 2,42( — — — 2,422
— — — — — — (827) (827)
= = = = = 184 (184) =
— — — — — — 18,33: 18,33
— — — — 1,35¢ — — 1,35¢
19,69(
73,608,57 $ 73€ $ 29,071 $1,818,75! $ 4,37¢ $ 4,53¢ $ (860,120 $ 988,60t

Series A Series B Distributions in

Cumulative Cumulative Non-Controlling Excess of Net

Redeemable Redeemable Additional Accumulated Interests in Income Available
Number of Common Preferred Preferred Paid-In Other Compre- Consolidated for Common
Common Shares Stock Shares Shares Capital hensive Loss Affiliates Stockholders Total

71,690,48 $ 717 % 29,09: $ 52,50C $1,766,88 @ $ (3,648 $ 446 $ (761,789 $  1,088,22
307,06( 3 —_ —_ 8,38¢ —_ —_ —_ 8,391
5,641 — — — 18€ — — — 18€
— — — — — — — (30,41) (30,417)
= = = = = = = (1,677) (1,677)
— — — — (13,08) — — — (13,08)
— — — — — — (221) — (221)
127,02¢ — — — — — — — —
— 1 — — 2,02t — — — 2,02¢
— — — — — — — (507) (507)
— — — — — — 123 (123 —
— — = = = = — 12,44: 12,44¢
_ _ _ — — (164) — — (169
12,27¢
72,130,21 $ 721 $ 29,09: $ 52,50( $1,764,40 $ (3819 $ 4,36: $ (782,06() $ 1,065,20

See accompanying notes to consolidated finanassients.
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HIGHWOODS PROPERTIES, INC.
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
(Unaudited and in thousands)

Three Months Ended March 31,

2012 2011
Operating activities:
Net income $ 18,33 $ 12,44
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cashigesl by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization 38,51¢ 33,81
Amortization of lease incentives and acquisitiolated intangible assets and liabilities 69 49¢
Share-based compensation expense 2,42z 2,02¢
Allowance for losses on accounts and accrued $itrdiige rents receivable 57¢ 29¢
Amortization of deferred financing costs 902 821
Amortization of settled cash flow hedges (33) (29)
Net gains on disposition of property (5,139 —
Gains on for-sale residential condominiums (65) (38)
Equity in (earnings)/losses of unconsolidated iat#ls 162 (1,467%)
Changes in financing obligations (334) (74)
Distributions of earnings from unconsolidated &ifiés 1,38¢ 1,137
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable 2,47( (993)
Prepaid expenses and other assets (4,497 (1,44¢)
Accrued straight-line rents receivable (5,387) (3,219
Accounts payable, accrued expenses and otheritiedil (27,349 (15,297
Net cash provided by operating activities 22,05( 28,48«
Investing activities:
Investment in development in process — (1,479
Investment in tenant improvements and deferredrigasosts (22,677) (12,917)
Investment in building improvements (8,487 (2,449
Net proceeds from disposition of real estate assets 10,941 —
Net proceeds from disposition of for-sale residdrdondominiums 1,00¢ 51C
Distributions of capital from unconsolidated afiies 901 40¢€
Repayments of mortgages and notes receivable 1,481 13z
Investments in and advances to unconsolidatedeaéd (1,197 (422)
Changes in restricted cash and other investingities 5,124 1,96¢
Net cash used in investing activities (12,89¢) (14,240)
Financing activities:
Dividends on Common Stock (30,96)) (30,417
Dividends on Preferred Stock (627) (1,67%)
Distributions to noncontrolling interests in the &@gting Partnership (1,589 (1,610
Distributions to noncontrolling interests in coridated affiliates (291) (221)
Net proceeds from the issuance of Common Stock 28,39: 8,391
Repurchase of shares related to tax withholdings (1,74 —
Borrowings on revolving credit facility 61,00( 5,00(C
Repayments of revolving credit facility (282,000 (35,000
Borrowings on mortgages and notes payable 225,00( 200,00(
Repayments of mortgages and notes payable (3,06%) (140,49)
Additions to deferred financing costs and otheaficing activities (2,247) (1,627)
Net cash provided by/(used in) financing activities (8,12%) 2,36(
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 1,027 16,60+

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the gherio 11,18¢ 14,20¢




Cash and cash equivalents at end of the period $ 12,21t $ 30,81(

See accompanying notes to consolidated finanassients.
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HIGHWOODS PROPERTIES, INC.
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows — Continued
(Unaudited and in thousands)

Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information:

Cash paid for interest, net of amounts capitalized

Supplemental disclosure of non-cash investing anéhfincing activities:

Unrealized gains on cash flow hedges

Conversion of Common Units to Common Stock

Changes in accrued capital expenditures

Write-off of fully depreciated real estate assets

Write-off of fully amortized deferred financing atehsing costs

Unrealized gains on marketable securities of noaifipd deferred compensation plan
Adjustment of noncontrolling interests in the Opieig Partnership to fair value
Unrealized gain/(loss) on tax increment financiogd

See accompanying notes to consolidated finanassients.
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Three Months Ended March 31,

2012

2011

25,97(

$

23,60:

Three Months Ended March 31,

2012 2011
1,10¢  $ —
63 18€
97t 2,641
15,84: 9,91z
3,32( 4,02z
334 177
14,36¢ 13,08:
287 (135)
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HIGHWOODS PROPERTIES, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
March 31, 2012
(tabular dollar amounts in thousands, except per shre data)
(Unaudited)

1. Description of Business and Significant Accaiing Policies
Description of Business

Highwoods Properties, Inc., together with its cdigsded subsidiaries (the “Company”), is a fullydégrated, self-administered and self-
managed equity real estate investment trust (“REif&t provides leasing, management, developmenstruction and other customedatec
services for its properties and for third parti#&e Company conducts virtually all of its activitiehrough Highwoods Realty Limit
Partnership (the “Operating Partnership”). At Magdh 2012 , the Company and/or the Operating Pastige wholly owned: 303 iservice
office, industrial and retail properties, comprgif9.3 million square feet; 14 for-sale resident@hdominiums; 58hacres of undevelop
land suitable for future development, of which Sdes are considered core assets; one office pyopkanned for development; arwhe
office property that is considered completed buty®b stabilized.

The Company is the sole general partner of the @ipgr Partnership. At March 31, 201fthe Company owned all of the Preferred L
and 73.2 million , or 95.2% , of the Common Unitstie Operating Partnership. Limited partners,uditig one officer and twdirectors o
the Company, own the remaining 3.7 milli@@mmon Units. In the event the Company issues st@r€ommon Stock, the net proceeds
contributed to the Operating Partnership in exckdog additional Common Units. Generally, the OfiagpPartnership is required to rede
each Common Unit at the request of the holder tdide cash equal to the value of one share ofGhmpany’s Common Stock, $ 0.@4l
value, based on the average of the market pricthé1t0Otrading days immediately preceding the notice datuch redemption, provided t|
the Company at its option may elect to acquiresargh Common Units presented for redemption for casine share of Common Stock.
Common Units owned by the Company are not redeem&hlring the three months ended March 31, 20h2 Gompany redeemetj00(
Common Units for a like number of shares of ComrBtock. The redemptions, in conjunction with thegeeds from issuances of Comr
Stock contributed to the Operating Partnershipxichange for additional Common Units, increasedpeentage of Common Units ow!
by the Company from 95.1% at December 31, 201518% at March 31, 2012 .

Common Stock Offerings

The Company has entered into equity sales agresmsaifit various financial institutions to offer asdll, from time to time, shares of
Common Stock by means of ordinary brokers' trams@ston the New York Stock Exchange or otherwismatket prices prevailing at t
time of sale, at prices related to prevailing mapces or at negotiated prices or as otherwiseaahwith any of the institutions. During
first quarter of 2012 , the Company issued 785 &tfres of Common Stock under these agreementsaaeaage gross sales price 328z
per share raising net proceeds, after sales conamssand expenses, of $ 25.4 million .

Basis of Presentation

Our Consolidated Financial Statements are preparednformity with accounting principles generafigcepted in the United States
America (“GAAP”). Our Consolidated Balance SheeDatcember 31, 201Was revised from previously reported amounts téecefin rea
estate and other assets, net, held for sale thopenpies which qualified as held for sale durihg three months ended March 31, 200l
Consolidated Statements of Income for the threethsoended March 31, 20Mere revised from previously reported amounts ftecein
discontinued operations the operations for thosgeties that qualified for discontinued operatidAgor period amounts related to caf
expenditures in our Consolidated Statements of €shs have been reclassified to conform to theesurperiod presentation.

Our Consolidated Financial Statements include tper&ting Partnership, wholly owned subsidiaries #iode entities in which we he
the controlling financial interest. All significarihtercompany transactions and accounts have bksinated. At March 31, 2012nc
December 31, 2011 , we had involvement with natiestthat we concluded to be variable interestiesti
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HIGHWOODS PROPERTIES, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)
(tabular dollar amounts in thousands, except per sfre data)

1. Description of Business and Significant Accaiing Policies — Continued

The unaudited interim consolidated financial stagate and accompanying unaudited consolidated fiagimformation, in the opinion
management, contain all adjustments (including mbmacurring accruals) necessary for a fair predent of our financial position, results
operations and cash flows. We have omitted centaias and other information from the interim coraikd financial statements presente
this Quarterly Report on Form 1D-as permitted by SEC rules and regulations. Ti@ssesolidated Financial Statements should be re
conjunction with our 2011 Annual Report on FormKLO-

Use of Estimates

The preparation of consolidated financial statemémntaccordance with GAAP requires us to make edémand assumptions that af
the amounts reported in the consolidated finarstetements and accompanying notes. Actual resuligl differ from those estimates.

Recently Issued Accounting Standards

As a result of adopting certain new or amended @tiog pronouncements in the first quarter of 204€,have enhanced our disclos
of assets and liabilities measured at fair valu elacted to continue use of credit valuation adjesits on a net basis by counterparty as
of the calculation to determine the fair value of derivatives. Our disclosures now include: (gngicant transfers between Levels 1 and
the fair value hierarchy, if any; (2) additionalatitative and qualitative information regarding faalue measurements categorized as Le
of the fair value hierarchy; and (3) the hierardtgssification for items whose fair value is notasled on our Consolidated Balance St
but was disclosed previously in our Notes to Cadstéd Financial Statements. Additionally, we hawesented comprehensive income
separate financial statement entitled ConsolidStatements of Comprehensive Income.
2. Real Estate Assets

Dispositions

During the first quarter of 2012 , we sold 96 vaa@mtal residential units in Kansas City, MO foogs proceeds of $ 11.0 millionVe
recorded gain on disposition of discontinued openatof $ 5.1 million related to this disposition.

3. Mortgages and Notes Receivable

The following table sets forth our mortgages antkaoeceivable:

March 31, December 31,

2012 2011
Seller financing (first mortgages) $ 15,807 $ 17,18(
Less allowance — —
15,80 17,18(
Promissory notes 1,43¢ 1,481
Less allowance (122) (61)
1,312 1,42(
Mortgages and notes receivable, net $ 17,11¢  § 18,60(

Our mortgages and notes receivable consist priynafikeller financing issued in conjunction withandisposition transactions in 20
This seller financing is evidenced by first mortgagecured by the assignment of rents and the lyimdereal estate assets. We evaluats
collectibility of the receivables by monitoring theasing statistics and market fundamentals ofettessets. As of March 31, 2012he
payments on both mortgages receivable were cuarehthere were no other indications of impairmenthe receivables. We may be requ
to take impairment charges in the future if antheextent the underlying collateral diminishesatue.

11
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HIGHWOODS PROPERTIES, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)
(tabular dollar amounts in thousands, except per sfre data)

3. Mortgages and Notes Receivable - Continued

The following table sets forth our notes receivallewance, which relates only to promissory notes:

Three Months Ended March 31,

2012 2011
Beginning notes receivable allowance $ 61 $ 86¢
Bad debt expense — 22
Recoveries/write-offs/other 61 (393
Total notes receivable allowance $ 12z 8 497

4. Investments in and Advances to Affiliates
Unconsolidated Affiliates
We have equity interests of up to 50.084various joint ventures with unrelated third pestand a secured debt interest in one of -

joint ventures, as described below. The followiabl¢ sets forth the combined, summarized incomteratnts for our unconsolidated jc
ventures:

Three Months Ended March 31,

2012 2011
Income Statements:
Rental and other revenues $ 24,82( $ 25,213
Expenses:
Rental property and other expenses 11,41¢ 11,997
Depreciation and amortization 6,56% 6,61¢
Impairment of real estate assets 7,18( —
Interest expense 5,83( 6,007
Total expenses 30,99! 24,62(
Net income/(loss) $ 6,27) $ 597
Our share of:
Depreciation and amortization of real estate assets $ 2,09¢ $ 2,09¢
Impairment of real estate assets $ 1,002 % —
Interest expense $ 1,98 $ 2,161
Net income/(loss) $ (795) $ 921
Our share of net income/(loss) $ (795) % 921
Purchase accounting and management, leasing aedfeds adjustments 633 54¢€
Equity in earnings/(losses) of unconsolidated iatfis $ (162) ¢ 1,460

In 2011, we provided a $ 38.3 million interestly secured loan to our DLF | joint venture thaigmally was scheduled to mature
March 2012 . The loan bears interest at LIBOR (@08 basis points . During the first quarter of 2Q%Be maturity date of the loan v
extended to June 30, 2012 . We recorded $0.4 mihointerest income from this loan in interest amnker income during théhree month
ended March 31, 2012 . There was no interest inaec@rded for this loan during the three monthsedndarch 31, 2011.

During the first quarter of 2012 , we recorded $hilion as our share of impairment of real estatsets on twoffice properties in o
DLF 1 joint venture, due to a decline in projecsctupancy and a change in the assumed holdingdpefithose assets, which reduced
expected future cash flows from the properties.
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HIGHWOODS PROPERTIES, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)
(tabular dollar amounts in thousands, except per sfre data)

5. Intangible Assets and Below Market Lease Lidlities

The following table sets forth total intangible etssand below market lease liabilities, net of auglated amortization:

March 31, December 31,
2012 2011
Assets:

Deferred financing costs $ 20,25:  $ 18,04«
Less accumulated amortization (6,67%) (5,797
13,57¢ 12,247
Deferred leasing costs (including lease incentare$ acquisition-related intangible assets) 176,61! 173,40!
Less accumulated amortization (60,987) (57,267)
115,62¢ 116,14:
Deferred financing and leasing costs, net $ 129,20 $ 128,39(

Liabilities (in accounts payable, accrued expensemsd other liabilities):
Acquisition-related below market lease liabilities $ 16,39C $ 16,44:
Less accumulated amortization (1,457 971
$ 1493 $ 15,47(

The following table sets forth amortization of inggble assets and below market lease liabilities:

Three Months Ended March 31,

2012 2011
Amortization of deferred financing costs $ 90z $ 821
Amortization of deferred leasing costs and acqoisitelated intangible assets (in depreciation @mdrtization) $ 6,44C $ 4,35¢
Amortization of lease incentives (in rental andestrevenues) $ 34 % 33¢€
Amortization of acquisition-related intangible assgn rental and other revenues) $ 27C % 18¢€
Amortization of acquisition-related below markedde liabilities (in rental and other revenues) $ (544 $ (25)

The following table sets forth scheduled future aimation of intangible assets and below markesédbilities:

Amortization
of Deferred
Leasing Costs Amortization
and Acquisition- Amortization of Acquisition-
Related Amortization of Acquisition- Related Below
Amortization Intangible Assets of Lease Related Market Lease
of Deferred (in Depreciation Incentives (in Intangible Assets Liabilities (in
Financing and Rental and Other (in Rental and Rental and Other
Costs Amortization) Revenues) Other Revenues) Revenues)
April 1, 2012 through December 31, 2012 $ 283 % 19,28: $ 981 $ 78¢ % (1,589
2013 3,30¢ 21,69( 1,15¢ 82C (2,099
2014 3,00¢ 17,49 992 52€ (2,019
2015 2,391 13,47¢ 771 341 (1,807
2016 1,02( 10,17¢ 60C 281 (1,517
Thereafter 1,02( 23,17: 2,341 74z (5,914
$ 13,57¢ $ 105,29: $ 6,83¢ $ 3,49¢ $ (14,939
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5. Intangible Assets and Below Market Lease Lidlities - Continued

The weighted average remaining amortization perfoddgeferred financing costs, deferred leasingscand acquisitiomelated intangibl
assets (in depreciation and amortization), leasenitives (in rental and other revenues), acquisitidated intangible assets (in rental
other revenues) and acquisition-related below ntddase liabilities (in rental and other revenues)ye 4.0 years, 6.2 years, 8.0 ye&s,
years an8.4 years, respectively, as of March 31, 2012 .

6. Mortgages and Notes Payable

The following table sets forth our mortgages antta@ayable:

March 31, December 31,

2012 2011
Secured indebtedness $ 746,78« $ 750,04
Unsecured indebtedness 1,157,19 1,153,16
Total mortgages and notes payable $ 190397 $ 1,903,21

At March 31, 2012 , our secured mortgage loans weoeired by real estate assets with an aggregdapretiated book value of 152
billion .

Our $ 475.0 million unsecured revolving credit faigiis scheduled to mature on July 27, 204 includes an accordion feature
allows for an additional $ 75.0 millioof borrowing capacity subject to additional lendemmitments. Assuming no defaults have occu
we have an option to extend the maturity for anitaafthl year. The interest rate at our current itreatings iSLIBOR plus 150 basis poir
and the annual facility fee is 35 basis points. irtterest rate and facility fee are based on tlghdri of the publicly announced ratings fi
Moody's Investors Service or Standard & Poor'srigatiServices. We use our revolving credit faciiiyworking capital purposes and for
short-term funding of our development and acquisitactivity and, in certain instances, the repaynuérother debtContinuing ability t
borrow under the revolving credit facility allows to quickly capitalize on strategic opportunitasshortterm interest rates. There wa
141.0 million and $ 112.0 million outstanding unaer revolving credit facility at March 31, 2012daApril 26, 2012, respectively. At bot
March 31, 2012 and April 26, 2012 , we had $ 0.Rioni of outstanding letters of credit, which reducesatailability on our revolving crec
facility. As a result, the unused capacity of cevalving credit facility at March 31, 2012 and A6, 2012 was $ 333.8 million and362.¢
million , respectively.

In the first quarter of 2012 , we obtained a $228illion , seven -year unsecured bank term loamibganterest oLIBOR plus 190 bas
points . The proceeds were used to pay off amdhets outstanding under our revolving credit fagilit

We are currently in compliance with the debt covesand other requirements with respect to ourtanting debt.

7. Derivative Financial Instruments

We have six floating-to-fixed interest rate swaps $even -year periods each with respect to aneggtg of $225.0 million LIBOR-
based borrowings. These swaps effectively fix thdeulying LIBOR rate at a weighted average of 1%78The counterparties under
swaps are major financial institutions. These swapee been designated as and are being accoumted éash flow hedges with change
fair value recorded in other comprehensive incoaeheaeporting period. No gain or loss was recoghiedated to hedge ineffectiveness ¢
amounts excluded from effectiveness testing orcash flow hedges during the three months endedivitc2012 .

Amounts reported in accumulated other comprehersis® ("AOCL") related to derivatives will be res$ified to interest expense

interest payments are made on our variable-rate @elsing the period from April 1, 2012 through Mbar31, 2013, we estimate th$3.1
million will be reclassified as an increase to et expense.
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7. Derivative Financial Instruments - Continued

The following table sets forth the fair value ofr @erivative instruments:

March 31, December 31,
2012 2011
Liability Derivatives:
Derivatives designated as cash flow hedges in othebilities:
Interest rate swaps $ 1,00¢ ¢ 2,20z

The following table sets forth the effect of ouslkedlow hedges on AOCL and interest expense:

Three Months Ended March 31,

2012 2011
Derivatives Designated as Cash Flow Hedges:
Amount of unrealized gain recognized in AOCL on devatives (effective portion):
Interest rate swaps $ 1,10¢ % —
Amount of (gain) reclassified out of AOCL into contactual interest expense (effective portion):
Interest rate swaps $ (33 ¢ (29)

8. Noncontrolling Interests
Noncontrolling Interests in the Operating Partnershp

Noncontrolling interests in the Operating Partngrsklate to the ownership of Common Units by vasiondividuals and entities ott
than the Company. Net income attributable to notroimg interests in the Operating Partnershigcdsnputed by applying the weigh
average percentage of Common Units not owned b timepany during the period, as a percent of the taimber of outstanding Comrmr
Units, to the Operating Partnershiphet income for the period after deducting distitnms on Preferred Units. When a noncontro
unitholder redeems a Common Unit for a share of @omStock or cash, the noncontrolling interesth@Operating Partnership are redu
and the Company’s share in the Operating Partnershincreased by the fair value of each secutithetime of redemption.

The following table sets forth noncontrolling irgsts in the Operating Partnership:

Three Months Ended March 31,

2012 2011
Beginning noncontrolling interests in the Operatifraytnership $ 110,65 $ 120,83t
Adjustments of noncontrolling interests in the Gyierg Partnership to fair value 14,36¢ 13,08:
Conversion of Common Units to Common Stock (63 (18¢€)
Net income attributable to noncontrolling interastthe Operating Partnership 827 507
Distributions to noncontrolling interests in the&dating Partnership (1,589 (1,610
Total noncontrolling interests in the OperatingtRership $ 124,20:  $ 132,63l
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8. Noncontrolling Interests - Continued

The following table sets forth net income availatlecommon stockholders and transfers from nomodlintg interests in the Operati
Partnership:

Three Months Ended March 31,

2012 2011
Net income available for common stockholders $ 16,69: $ 10,13¢
Increase in additional paid in capital from coni@nrof Common Units to Common Stock 63 18¢
Change from net income available for common stoltidrs and transfers from noncontrolling interests $ 16,75. § 10,32

Noncontrolling Interests in Consolidated Affiliates

At March 31, 2012 , noncontrolling interests in solidated affiliates relates to our joint venturartper's 50.0%nterest in offici
properties located in Richmond, VA. Our joint vergtpartner is an unrelated third party.

9. Disclosure About Fair Value of Financial Instrument

The following summarizes the three levels of inghtt we use to measure fair value, as well assisets, noncontrolling interests in
Operating Partnership and liabilities that we retdpg at fair value using those levels of inputs.

Level 1. Quoted prices in active markets for identicaktssr liabilities.

Our Level 1 assets are investments in marketalderisies that we use to pay benefits under our qualified deferred compensat
plan. Our Level 1 noncontrolling interests in thpe@ating Partnership relate to the ownership of @om Units by various individuals a
entities other than the Company. Our Level 1 ligbis our non-qualified deferred compensation géation.

Level 2.0bservable inputs other than Level 1 prices, sgofuated prices for similar assets or liabilitigsoted prices in markets that
not active; or other inputs that are observableasr be corroborated by observable market dataufestantially the full term of the relat
assets or liabilities.

Our Level 2 asset is the fair value of our mortgaged notes receivable, which was estimated byirtbeme approach utilizir
contractual cash flows and mark®tsed interest rates to approximate the priceviioatd be paid in an orderly transaction betweenkei
participants.

Our Level 2 liabilities include (1) the fair valeé our mortgages and notes payable, which was atiirby the income approach utiliz
contractual cash flows and mark®tsed interest rates to approximate the priceviioatd be paid in an orderly transaction betweenkei
participants and (2) interest rate swaps whosevtdire is determined using the market standard odetbgy of netting the discounted fut
fixed cash receipts and the discounted expectadhlarcash payments. The variable cash paymertsrahterest rate swaps are based o
expectation of future LIBOR interest rates (forwanatves) derived from observed market LIBOR intemase curves. In addition, cre
valuation adjustments are incorporated in thevaiues to account for potential nonperformance, tisit were concluded to not be signific
inputs to the calculation for the periods presented

Level 3. Unobservable inputs that are supported by littlen@market activity and that are significant to fag value of the assets
liabilities.

Our Level 3 assets include our tax increment fimandond, which is not routinely traded but whosae ¥alue is determined by t
income approach utilizing contractual cash flowd amarketbased interest rates to estimate the projectedmatiten value based on quo
bid/ask prices for similar unrated municipal boaasl real estate assets and for-sale residentidbooniums recorded at fair value on a non-
recurring basis as a result of our quarterly impaint analyses, which were valued using broker opinf value and substantiated by inte
cash flow projections.
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9. Disclosure About Fair Value of Financial Instrument - Continued

Our Level 3 liability is the fair value of our finaing obligations, which was estimated by the ineapproach to approximate the p
that would be paid in an orderly transaction betwemrket participants, utilizing: (1) contractuakh flows; (2) markebased interest rat:
and (3) a number of other assumptions including ateifor space, competition for customers, changesarket rental rates, costs
operation and expected ownership periods.

The following tables set forth the assets, nonadiimyg interests in the Operating Partnership aadilities that we measure at fair va
by level within the fair value hierarchy. We detémmthe level based on the lowest level of substanput used to determine fair value.

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Quoted Prices
in Active
Markets for Significant Significant
Identical Assets Observable Unobservable
March 31, 2012 or Liabilities Inputs Inputs

Assets:
Mortgages and notes receivable, at fair valye $ 17,48t % — % 17,48t % —
Marketable securities of non-qualified deferred pemsation plan (in prepaid

expenses and other assets) 3,21¢ 3,21¢ — —
Tax increment financing bond (in prepaid expensekaiher assets) 15,07t — — 15,07t

Total Assets $ 35,78: $ 321¢ % 17,48¢ $ 15,07¢
Noncontrolling Interests in the Operating Partnership $ 124,20 $ 124,20. $ — 8 —
Liabilities:
Mortgages and notes payable, at fair vaidye $ 2,000,033 $ — $ 2,000,033 % —
Interest rate swaps (in accounts payable, accrxgehses and other liabilities) 1,09¢ — 1,09¢ —
Non-qualified deferred compensation obligationg@tounts payable, accrued

expenses and other liabilities) 3,21¢ 3,21¢ — —
Financing obligations, at fair valyg 20,07¢ — — 20,07¢

Total Liabilities $ 202443 % 321¢ $ 2001,13 $ 20,07¢
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9. Disclosure About Fair Value of Financial Instrument - Continued

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Quoted Prices
in Active
Markets for Significant Significant
December 31, Identical Assets Observable Unobservable
2011 or Liabilities Inputs Inputs

Assets:
Mortgages and notes receivable, at fair valye $ 18,99 $ — 18,99 $ —
Marketable securities of non-qualified deferred pemsation plan (in prepaid

expenses and other assets) 3,14¢ 3,14¢ — —
Tax increment financing bond (in prepaid expensekaiher assets) 14,78¢ — — 14,78¢
Impaired real estate assets and for-sale residlentidominiums 12,767 — — 12,76,

Total Assets $ 49,69 % 3,14¢  $ 18,99 $ 27,55¢
Noncontrolling Interests in the Operating Partnership $ 110,65 $ 110,65 $ — 3 =
Liabilities:
Mortgages and notes payable, at fair vaiye $ 199293 $ — $ 199293 $ —
Interest rate swaps (in accounts payable, accrxehses and other liabilities) 2,202 — 2,20z —
Non-qualified deferred compensation obligationg@tounts payable, accrued

expenses and other liabilities) 3,14¢ 3,14¢ — —
Financing obligations, at fair valyg 18,86¢ — — 18,86¢

Total Liabilities $ 2017,15 $ 3,14¢ $§ 1,995,133 $ 18,86¢

(1) Amounts carried at historical cost on oun€didated Balance Sheets at March 31, 2012 andrbleer 31, 2011, respectively.

The following table sets forth the changes in oewél 3 asset, which is recorded at fair value anGansolidated Balance Sheets on a
recurring basis:

Three Months Ended March 31,

2012 2011
Asset:
Tax Increment Financing Bond:
Beginning balance $ 14,78¢ $ 15,69¢
Unrealized gain/(loss) (in AOCL) 287 (135)
Ending balance $ 15,078 $ 15,56¢

In 2007, we acquired a tax increment financing bassbciated with a parking garage developed byhis.bond amortizes to maturity
2020 . The estimated fair value at March 31, 2042 $2.0 millionbelow the outstanding principal due on the bondhéf discount rate us
to fair value this bond was 100 basis points highrelower, the fair value of the bond would haveé0.6 million lower o$0.6 millior
higher, respectively, as of March 31, 2Q1Qurrently, we intend to hold this bond and haseatuded that we will not be required to sell
bond before recovery of the bond principal. Paynadrihe principal and interest for the bond is gueed by us and, therefore, we t
recorded no credit losses related to the bondentlihee months ended March 31, 2012 and 200Here is no legal right of offset with 1
liability, which we report as a financing obligatiarelated to this tax increment financing bond.
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9. Disclosure About Fair Value of Financial Instrument - Continued

The following table sets forth quantitative infortioa about the unobservable inputs of our LevesS8es which is recorded at fair va
on our Consolidated Balance Sheets on a recurasighb

Fair Value at Valuation Unobservable Discount
March 31, 2012 Technique Input Rate
Tax increment financing bond $ 15,07¢ Income approach Discount rate 10.71%

10. Share-based Payment

During the three months ended March 31, 2012 , naatgd 190,8868tock options with an exercise price equal to tbsirsg market pric
of a share of our Common Stock on the date of gitme fair value of each option grant is estimatacthe date of grant using the Black-
Scholes option pricing model, which resulted in eighted average grant date fair value per shafe#7 . During théhree months end
March 31, 2012 , we also granted 83,489 sharesna&-based restricted stock and 67,902 shares aff teturnbased restricted stock w
weighted average grant date fair values per she$e38.18 and $ 38.71 , respectively. We recordedksbased compensation expens8¥
million and $2.0 million during the three monthgded March 31, 2012 and 2011 , respectively. At M&t, 2012 , there was $9.4 millioh
total unrecognized stock-based compensation omktsh will be recognized over a weighted averageaig@ing contractual term of 2.8 years.

11. Accumulated Other Comprehensive Los

The following table sets forth the components afumeulated other comprehensive loss:

Three Months Ended March 31,

2012 2011
Tax increment financing bond:
Beginning balance $ (2,309 $ (2,543
Unrealized gain/(loss) on tax increment financiogd 287 (135)
Ending balance (2,027 (2,67¢)
Cash flow hedges:
Beginning balance (3,425 (1,105
Unrealized gains on cash flow hedges 1,10¢ —
Amortization of settled cash flow hedges (33) (29)
Ending balance (2,359 (1,134
Total accumulated other comprehensive loss $ (4379 $ (3,819
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12. Discontinued Operation:

The following table sets forth our operations whieljuired classification as discontinued operations

Rental and other revenues
Operating expenses:

HIGHWOODS PROPERTIES, INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)

(tabular dollar amounts in thousands, except per sfre data)

Rental property and other expenses

Depreciation and amortization
Total operating expenses
Income from discontinued operations

Net gains on disposition of discontinued operations

Total discontinued operations

The following table sets forth the major classeassfets and liabilities of the properties heldstle:

Assets:
Land

Buildings and tenant improvements

Accumulated depreciation
Net real estate assets

Accrued straight line rents receivable

Deferred leasing costs, net

Prepaid expenses and other assets

Real estate and other assets, net, held for sale

Tenant security deposits, deferred rents and ad@ostg1)

(1) Included in accounts payable, accrued expensesthed liabilities

20

Three Months Ended March 31,

2012 2011

$ 42¢ 1,241

19z 44%

15z 25€

34¢ 701

83 54C

5,13¢ —

$ 5,21 54C

March 31, December 31,
2012 2011

$ 80z 1,901

9,44¢ 16,18«

(3,299 (5,529

6,954 12,56:

39:¢ 39¢

20t 19t

4 104

$ 7,55¢€ 13,26(

81 72
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13. Earnings Per Share

The following table sets forth the computation asig and diluted earnings per share:

Three Months Ended March 31,

2012 2011
Earnings per Common Share - basic:
Numerator:
Income from continuing operations $ 13,118 % 11,90¢
Net (income) attributable to noncontrolling intdeem the Operating Partnership from continuingrafiens (577) (480)
Net (income) attributable to noncontrolling inteeem consolidated affiliates from continuing ogeras (184) (123)
Dividends on Preferred Stock (627) (2,677)
Income from continuing operations available for coom stockholders 11,73¢ 9,62:
Income from discontinued operations 5,217 54C
Net (income) attributable to noncontrolling inteeeim the Operating Partnership from discontinuperations (25€) (27)
Income from discontinued operations available fanmon stockholders 4,961 513
Net income available for common stockholders $ 16,69: $ 10,13¢
Denominator:
Denominator for basic earnings per Common Shareighted average shar@s (2) 72,83¢ 71,811
Earnings per Common Share - basic:
Income from continuing operations available for coom stockholders $ 0.1¢ $ 0.1%
Income from discontinued operations available fanmon stockholders 0.07 0.01
Net income available for common stockholders $ 02: $ 0.14
Earnings per Common Share - diluted:
Numerator:
Income from continuing operations $ 13,118 % 11,90¢
Net (income) attributable to noncontrolling inteeem consolidated affiliates from continuing ogeras (184 (123)
Dividends on Preferred Stock (627) (2,677)
Income from continuing operations available for coom stockholders before net (income) attributabledncontrolling
interests in the Operating Partnership 12,30« 10,10¢
Income from discontinued operations available finmon stockholders 5,217 54(
Net income available for common stockholders befmie(income) attributable to noncontrolling intteein the Operating
Partnership 17,52:  $ 10,64:
Denominator:
Denominator for basic earnings per Common Shareghtex] average sharés (2) 72,83¢ 71,817
Add:
Stock options using the treasury method 132 18t
Noncontrolling interests Common Units 3,72¢ 3,79(
Denominator for diluted earnings per Common Shaadjusted weighted average shares and assumedrsiomag 1) 76,69¢ 75,79:
Earnings per Common Share - diluted:
Income from continuing operations available for coom stockholders $ 0.1¢ $ 0.1%
Income from discontinued operations available finmon stockholders 0.07 0.01
$ 02: $ 0.14

Net income available for common stockholders

(1) There were 0.6 million and 0.3 million optiomststanding during the three months ended Mar¢l2312 and 2011respectively, that were not incluc
in the computation of diluted earnings per shamahbse the impact of including such options woul@ii-dilutive.

(2) Includes all unvested restricted stock singaldnds on such restricted stock are riorieitable
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14. Segment Information

The following table summarizes the rental and otkeenues and net operating income, the primanysing propertylevel performanc
metric which is defined as rental and other revsriess rental property and other expenses, for ieguairtable segment:

Three Months Ended March 31,

2012 2011
Rental and Other Revenues(1)

Office:
Atlanta, GA $ 15,78t $ 11,902
Greenville, SC 3,50« 3,50¢
Kansas City, MO 3,762 3,657
Memphis, TN 10,13¢ 10,10:¢
Nashville, TN 15,60: 14,61¢
Orlando, FL 2,68¢ 2,31¢
Piedmont Triad, NC 5,081 5,364
Pittsburgh, PA 9,087 —
Raleigh, NC 19,78: 19,32:
Richmond, VA 11,51 11,37¢
Tampa, FL 17,13¢ 16,37¢
Total Office Segment 114,07¢ 98,54:

Industrial:

Atlanta, GA 3,774 3,93¢
Piedmont Triad, NC 3,16¢ 2,971
Total Industrial Segment 6,93¢ 6,911

Retail:
Kansas City, MO 8,92t 8,89¢
Total Retail Segment 8,92t 8,89¢
Total Rental and Other Revenues $ 129,940  § 114,35:
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14. Segment Information -Continued

Three Months Ended March 31,

2012 2011
Net Operating Income: (1)
Office:
Atlanta, GA $ 10,39¢ 7,49
Greenville, SC 2,132 2,07t
Kansas City, MO 2,362 2,11«
Memphis, TN 6,10 5,75¢
Nashville, TN 10,60: 9,651
Orlando, FL 1,41¢ 1,16¢€
Piedmont Triad, NC 3,23: 3,60(
Pittsburgh, PA 4,28z —
Raleigh, NC 13,85¢ 13,21¢
Richmond, VA 7,88¢ 7,861
Tampa, FL 10,84( 10,13(
Total Office Segment 73,10¢ 63,06¢
Industrial:
Atlanta, GA 2,88¢ 2,83¢
Piedmont Triad, NC 2,28¢ 2,22
Total Industrial Segment 517 5,062
Retail:
Kansas City, MO 5,53¢ 5,287
Total Retail Segment 5,53¢ 5,28}
Total Net Operating Income 83,81¢ 73,417
Reconciliation to income from continuing operationsbefore disposition of condominiums and equity in&nings/
(losses) of unconsolidated affiliates:
Depreciation and amortization (38,362) (33,55¢)
General and administrative expense (9,679 (7,799
Interest expense (24,807 (23,549
Other income 2,23( 1,87¢
Income from continuing operations before dispositid condominiums and equity in earnings/(lossésinconsolidated
affiliates $ 13,21: 10,39¢

(1) Net of discontinued operatiol
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15. Subsequent Event

In early April 2012 , the Company issued 307,86@res of Common Stock from sales in the first tguasf 2012 under our equity sé
agreements at an average gross sales price of33g8@r&hare raising net proceeds, after sales cesions and expenses, of $10.0 million .

On April 25, 2012 , we sold an office property ltedhnear Tampa, FL for gross proceeds of $9.5anillWe expect to record a gain
disposition of discontinued operations of $1.4 imillrelated to this transaction.

On April 27, 2012 , we acquired a 178,300 squaod @dfice property in Cary, NC from our DLF | joinenture for $26.0 million The
joint venture's net proceeds$25.3 million were all used to reduce the balarfdb@ advance due to us from the joint venture.
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Assets:

Real estate assets, at cost:

Land

Buildings and tenant improvements
Land held for development

Less-accumulated depreciation

Net real estate assets
For-sale residential condominiums
Real estate and other assets, net, held for sale
Cash and cash equivalents
Restricted cash
Accounts receivable, net of allowance of $3,413 $8&48, respectively
Mortgages and notes receivable, net of allowan&la® and $61, respectively
Accrued straight-line rents receivable, net ofwalace of $1,420 and $1,294, respectively
Investments in and advances to unconsolidate defd
Deferred financing and leasing costs, net of acdarad amortization of $67,662 and $63,059, respelsti
Prepaid expenses and other assets

Liabilities, Redeemable Operating Partnership Unitsand Equity:
Mortgages and notes payable
Accounts payable, accrued expenses and otheiitiiedil
Financing obligations

Equity:

Common Units:
General partner Common Units, 769,273 and 759,68tanding, respectively
Limited partner Common Units, 72,430,489 and 71,2049 outstanding, respectively
Accumulated other comprehensive loss
Noncontrolling interests in consolidated affiliates

HIGHWOODS REALTY LIMITED PARTNERSHIP
Consolidated Balance Sheets
(Unaudited and in thousands, except unit and pidare)

Total Assets

Total Liabilities
Commitments and contingencies
Redeemable Operating Partnership Units:
Common Units, 3,727,518 and 3,729,518 outstandespectively
Series A Preferred Units (liquidation preferenced$0 per unit), 29,077 units issued and outstanding

Total Redeemable Operating Partnership Units

Total Liabilities, Redeemable Operating Partnershijts and Equity

March 31, December 31,
2012 2011

$ 368,12: $ 367,87(

3,137,65 3,127,98.

105,20t 105,20t

3,610,98! 3,601,06!

(911,517 (895,77)

2,699,47. 2,705,28:

3,80¢ 4,751

7,55¢€ 13,26(

9,052 11,15

20,75: 26,66¢

30,48: 30,09:

17,11¢ 18,60(

110,97 105,61:

98,00( 99,29¢

129,20 128,39(

42,99 36,78

$ 3,169,411 $ 3,179,88.

$ 1,903,970 $ 1,903,21

122,54! 148,82:

31,11¢( 31,44

2,057,63: 2,083,47:

124,20: 110,65!

29,071 29,071

153,27¢ 139,73:

9,58( 9,57¢

948,76« 948,18

(4,376 (5,739

4,53¢ 4,64¢

958,50° 956,67+

$ 3,169,411 $ 3,179,88.

See accompanying notes to consolidated financassients.
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HIGHWOODS REALTY LIMITED PARTNERSHIP
Consolidated Statements of Income
(Unaudited and in thousands, except per unit anspunt

Three Months Ended March 31,

2012 2011
Rental and other revenues $ 129,94: $ 114,35:
Operating expenses:
Rental property and other expenses 46,06 41,08
Depreciation and amortization 38,36: 33,55¢
General and administrative 9,73t 7,644
Total operating expenses 94,15¢ 82,28:
Interest expense:
Contractual 23,94¢ 22,43:
Amortization of deferred financing costs 902 821
Financing obligations (48) 291
24,80: 23,54
Other income:
Interest and other income 2,23( 1,87:
2,23( 1,87¢
Income from continuing operations before dispositia of condominiums and equity in earnings/(lossesf o
unconsolidated affiliates 13,21 10,39¢
Gains on for-sale residential condominiums 65 38
Equity in earnings/(losses) of unconsolidated iatfis (16C) 1,47¢
Income from continuing operations 13,117 11,91:
Discontinued operations:
Income from discontinued operations 83 54C
Net gains on disposition of discontinued operations 5,13¢ —
5,217 54C
Net income 18,33¢ 12,45:
Net (income) attributable to noncontrolling inteeeim consolidated affiliates (184) (123%)
Distributions on Preferred Units (627) (1,677)
Net income available for common unitholders $ 17,52 % 10,65
Earnings per Common Unit — basic:
Income from continuing operations available for coom unitholders $ 0.1€ $ 0.1z
Income from discontinued operations available finmon unitholders 0.07 0.01
Net income available for common unitholders $ 0.2: % 0.14
Weighted average Common Units outstanding — basic 76,15t 75,19¢
Earnings per Common Unit — diluted:
Income from continuing operations available for coom unitholders $ 0.1€ $ 0.1z
Income from discontinued operations available finmon unitholders 0.07 0.01
Net income available for common unitholders $ 02 $ 0.14
Weighted average Common Units outstanding — diluted 76,28’ 75,38
Distributions declared per Common Unit $ 0.42t $ 0.42¢
Net income available for common unitholders:
Income from continuing operations available for coom unitholders $ 12,30¢ $ 10,11
Income from discontinued operations available fanmon unitholders 5,217 54C
Net income available for common unitholders $ 17,52t § 10,65:

See accompanying notes to consolidated finanassients.
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HIGHWOODS REALTY LIMITED PARTNERSHIP
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income
(Unaudited and in thousands)

Other comprehensive income/(loss):
Net income
Other comprehensive income/(loss):
Unrealized gain/(loss) on tax increment financiogd
Unrealized gains on cash flow hedges
Amortization of settled cash flow hedges
Total other comprehensive income/(loss)
Total comprehensive income
Less-comprehensive (income) attributable to nomodimtg interests

Comprehensive income attributable to the Operd@iagnership

See accompanying notes to consolidated financitdsients.
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Three Months Ended March 31,

2012 2011
18,33 $ 12,45:
287 (135)

1,10¢ —
(33 (29)

1,35¢ (164)
19,69: $ 12,28:
(184) (129)
19,50¢  $ 12,16¢




Table of Contents

HIGHWOODS REALTY LIMITED PARTNERSHIP
Consolidated Statements of Capital
(Unaudited and in thousands, except unit amounts)

Common Units

Noncontrolling

General Limited Accumulated Interests in
Partners’ Partners’ Other Consolidated Total Partners’
Capital Capital Comprehensive Loss Affiliates Capital
Balance at December 31, 2011 $ 9,57t % 948,18° $ (5,739 4,64 $ 956,67+
Issuances of Common Units, net 26€ 26,37¢ — — 26,644
Distributions paid on Common Units (323 (32,049 — — (32,37)
Distributions paid on Preferred Units (6) (621) — — (627)
Share-based compensation expense 24 2,39¢ — — 2,42%
Distribution to noncontrolling interests in constated affiliates — — — (29)) (29))
Adjustment of Redeemable Common Units to fair valnd
contributions/distributions from/to the GeneraltRar (237) (13,499 — — (13,63€)
Net (income) attributable to noncontrolling intese consolidated
affiliates 2) (182) — 184 —
Comprehensive income:
Net income 183 18,151 — — 18,33¢
Other comprehensive income — — 1,35¢ — 1,35¢
Total comprehensive income 19,69:
Balance at March 31' 2012 $ 9,58( $ 948,76‘ $ (4,370 4153‘@ $ 958,50
Common Units .
Noncontrolling
General Limited Accumulated Interests in
Partners’ Partners’ Other Consolidated Total Partners’
Capital Capital Comprehensive Loss Affiliates Capital
Balance at December 31, 2010 $ 10,04 % 994,61( $ (3,64¢) 4,46C $ 1,005,46!
Issuances of Common Units, net 84 8,307 — — 8,391
Distributions paid on Common Units (31¢) (31,529 — — (31,849
Distributions paid on Preferred Units a7 (1,660 — — (1,677
Share-based compensation expense 20 2,00€ — — 2,02¢
Distribution to noncontrolling interests in conslated affiliates — — — (221) (221)
Adjustment of Redeemable Common Units to fair vaind
contributions/distributions from/to the GeneraltRar (222) (22,000 — — (12,127
Net (income) attributable to noncontrolling intese consolidated
affiliates [€0)] (122) — 123 —
Comprehensive income/(loss):
Net income 12t 12,32¢ — — 12,45!
Other comprehensive loss — — (164) — (164)
Total comprehensive income 12,283
Balance at March 31’ 2011 $ 9,815 $ 971,935 $ (3,812) 4,362 $ 982,30:

See accompanying notes to consolidated financitdsients.
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Operating activities:

HIGHWOODS REALTY LIMITED PARTNERSHIP
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
(Unaudited and in thousands)

Three Months Ended March 31,

Net income
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cashigesl by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization
Amortization of lease incentives and acquisitiolated intangible assets and liabilities
Share-based compensation expense
Allowance for losses on accounts and accrued $itrdiige rents receivable
Amortization of deferred financing costs
Amortization of settled cash flow hedges
Net gains on disposition of property
Gains on for-sale residential condominiums
Equity in (earnings)/losses of unconsolidated iat#ls
Changes in financing obligations
Distributions of earnings from unconsolidated &ifiés
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable
Prepaid expenses and other assets
Accrued straight-line rents receivable
Accounts payable, accrued expenses and otheritiedil

Net cash provided by operating activities

Investing activities:

Investment in development in process

Investment in tenant improvements and deferredrigasosts
Investment in building improvements

Net proceeds from disposition of real estate assets

Net proceeds from disposition of for-sale residdrdondominiums
Distributions of capital from unconsolidated afiies
Repayments of mortgages and notes receivable

Investments in and advances to unconsolidatedzaéd

Changes in restricted cash and other investingities

Net cash used in investing activities

Financing activities:

Distributions on Common Units

Dividends on Preferred Units

Distributions to noncontrolling interests in coridated affiliates
Net proceeds from the issuance of Common Units
Repurchase of units related to tax withholdings

Borrowings on revolving credit facility

Repayments of revolving credit facility

Borrowings on mortgages and notes payable

Repayments of mortgages and notes payable

Additions to deferred financing costs and otheaficing activities

Net cash provided by/(used in) financing activities

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equisalent
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the gberio

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the period

2012 2011
18,33 12,45:
38,51 33,81

69 49¢
2,42z 2,02¢
57¢ 29¢
902 821
(33) (29)
(5,13 —
(65) (38)

16C (1,475)
(334) (74)
1,381 1,13
2,47 (999)
(4,449 (1,29
(5,387) (3,219
(27,349 (15,29)
22,001 28,63
— (1,479
(22,67 (12,91
(8,489 (2,442)
10,941 —
1,00¢ 51C
901 40¢
1,481 132
(1,197 (422)
5,12 1,96¢
(12,89¢) (14,240)
(32,379 (31,84)
(627) (1,677
(291) (221)
25,14 8,391
(1,749 —
61,00 5,00(
(282,000 (35,000
225,00 200,00
(3,067 (140,49;)
(2,33)) (1,957
(11,29/) 2,20
(2,099 16,59¢
11,15: 14,19¢
9,05z 30,79:




See accompanying notes to consolidated finanastsients.
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HIGHWOODS REALTY LIMITED PARTNERSHIP
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows - Continued
(Unaudited and in thousands)

Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information:

Cash paid for interest, net of amounts capitalized

Supplemental disclosure of non-cash investing anéhfincing activities:

Unrealized gains on cash flow hedges

Changes in accrued capital expenditures

Write-off of fully depreciated real estate assets

Write-off of fully amortized deferred financing atehsing costs

Unrealized gains on marketable securities of noaified deferred compensation plan
Adjustment of Redeemable Common Units to fair value

Unrealized gain/(loss) on tax increment financiogdb

See accompanying notes to consolidated financidsients.
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Three Months Ended March 31,

2012

2011

$ 25,97(

$

23,60:

Three Months Ended March 31,

2012 2011
$ 1,10 $ —
97t 2,641
15,84 9,917
3,32( 4,02¢
334 177
13,54¢ 11,79:
287 (138)
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HIGHWOODS REALTY LIMITED PARTNERSHIP
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
March 31, 2012
(tabular dollar amounts in thousands, except per ui data)
(Unaudited)

1. Description of Business and Significant Accaiing Policies
Description of Business

Highwoods Properties, Inc., together with its cdigsded subsidiaries (the “Company”), is a fulltegrated, self-administered and self-
managed equity real estate investment trust (“REif&t provides leasing, management, developmenstruction and other custometatec
services for its properties and for third parti#@e Company conducts virtually all of its activitithrough Highwoods Realty Limit
Partnership (the “Operating Partnership”). At Magdh 2012 , the Company and/or the Operating Pastiie wholly owned: 303 iservice
office, industrial and retail properties, comprgif9.3 million square feet; 14 for-sale resident@hdominiums; 58%hcres of undevelop
land suitable for future development, of which S@es are considered core assets; one office pyopkanned for development; armhe
office property that is considered completed buty®b stabilized.

The Company is the sole general partner of the @jpgr Partnership. At March 31, 201the Company owned all of the Preferred L
and 73.2 million , or 95.2% , of the Common Unitsthie Operating Partnership. Limited partners,udiclg one officer and twdirectors o
the Company, own the remaining 3.7 milli@@mmon Units. In the event the Company issues shEr€ommon Stock, the net proceeds
contributed to the Operating Partnership in exckdong additional Common Units. Generally, the OfiagpPartnership is required to rede
each Common Unit at the request of the holder tidor cash equal to the value of one share ofGbmpany’s Common Stock, $ 0.pal
value, based on the average of the market pricthétOtrading days immediately preceding the notice datich redemption, provided tl
the Company at its option may elect to acquiresargh Common Units presented for redemption for casine share of Common Stock.
Common Units owned by the Company are not redeamdhlring the three months ended March 31, 20h2 Gompany redeeme00(
Common Units for a like number of shares of Comr8taock. The redemptions, in conjunction with thegaexds from issuances of Comr
Stock contributed to the Operating Partnershipxichange for additional Common Units, increasedpieentage of Common Units ow!
by the Company from 95.1% at December 31, 2015t2% at March 31, 2012 .

Common Stock Offerings

The Company has entered into equity sales agresméitft various financial institutions to offer aedll, from time to time, shares of
Common Stock by means of ordinary brokers' tranmagton the New York Stock Exchange or otherwismatket prices prevailing at t
time of sale, at prices related to prevailing magkées or at negotiated prices or as otherwiseaagwith any of the institutions. During
first quarter of 2012 , the Company issued 785&tdres of Common Stock under these agreementsaaeange gross sales price 328z
per share raising net proceeds, after sales conamssand expenses, of $ 25.4 millipof which $3.2 million was due to the Opera
Partnership at March 31, 2012.

Basis of Presentation

Our Consolidated Financial Statements are preparednformity with accounting principles generaligcepted in the United States
America (“GAAP"). Our Consolidated Balance SheeDacember 31, 201Was revised from previously reported amounts ttecefin rea
estate and other assets, net, held for sale thogenies which qualified as held for sale durihg three months ended March 31, 20T
Consolidated Statements of Income for the threethsoended March 31, 20Mere revised from previously reported amounts fleecein
discontinued operations the operations for thosgeties that qualified for discontinued operatidAgor period amounts related to caj
expenditures in our Consolidated Statements of Ekshis have been reclassified to conform to theerurperiod presentation.

Our Consolidated Financial Statements include wholned subsidiaries and those entities in whichhaee the controlling financi
interest. All significant intercompany transacticersd accounts have been eliminated. At March 312 2dhd December 31, 2011ve has
involvement with no entities that we concluded ¢oviariable interest entities.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)
(tabular dollar amounts in thousands, except per ui data)

1. Description of Business and Significant Accating Policies — Continued

The unaudited interim consolidated financial stagate and accompanying unaudited consolidated fiagimformation, in the opinion
management, contain all adjustments (including mbmacurring accruals) necessary for a fair predent of our financial position, results
operations and cash flows. We have omitted centaias and other information from the interim coraikd financial statements presente
this Quarterly Report on Form 1D-as permitted by SEC rules and regulations. Ti@ssesolidated Financial Statements should be re
conjunction with our 2011 Annual Report on FormKLO-

Use of Estimates

The preparation of consolidated financial statemémntaccordance with GAAP requires us to make edémand assumptions that af
the amounts reported in the consolidated finarstetements and accompanying notes. Actual resuligl differ from those estimates.

Recently Issued Accounting Standards

As a result of adopting certain new or amended @tiog pronouncements in the first quarter of 204€,have enhanced our disclos
of assets and liabilities measured at fair valu elacted to continue use of credit valuation adjesits on a net basis by counterparty as
of the calculation to determine the fair value of derivatives. Our disclosures now include: (gngicant transfers between Levels 1 and
the fair value hierarchy, if any; (2) additionalatitative and qualitative information regarding faalue measurements categorized as Le
of the fair value hierarchy; and (3) the hierardtgssification for items whose fair value is notasled on our Consolidated Balance St
but was disclosed previously in our Notes to Cadstéd Financial Statements. Additionally, we hawesented comprehensive income
separate financial statement entitled ConsolidStatements of Comprehensive Income.
2. Real Estate Assets

Dispositions

During the first quarter of 2012 , we sold 96 vaa@mtal residential units in Kansas City, MO foogs proceeds of $ 11.0 millionVe
recorded gain on disposition of discontinued openatof $ 5.1 million related to this disposition.

3. Mortgages and Notes Receivable

The following table sets forth our mortgages antéaoeceivable:

March 31, December 31,

2012 2011
Seller financing (first mortgages) $ 15,807 $ 17,18(
Less allowance — —
15,80 17,18(
Promissory notes 1,43¢ 1,481
Less allowance (122) (61)
1,312 1,42(
Mortgages and notes receivable, net $ 17,11¢  § 18,60(

Our mortgages and notes receivable consist priynafikeller financing issued in conjunction withadisposition transactions in 20
This seller financing is evidenced by first mortgagecured by the assignment of rents and the lyimdereal estate assets. We evaluats
collectibility of the receivables by monitoring theasing statistics and market fundamentals ofettessets. As of March 31, 2012he
payments on both mortgages receivable were cuarehthere were no other indications of impairmenthe receivables. We may be requ
to take impairment charges in the future if antheextent the underlying collateral diminishesatue.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)
(tabular dollar amounts in thousands, except per ui data)

3. Mortgages and Notes Receivable - Continued

The following table sets forth our notes receivallewance, which relates only to promissory notes:

Three Months Ended March 31,

2012 2011
Beginning notes receivable allowance $ 61 $ 86¢
Bad debt expense — 22
Recoveries/write-offs/other 61 (393
Total notes receivable allowance $ 12z 8 497

4. Investments in and Advances to Affiliates
Unconsolidated Affiliates
We have equity interests of up to 50.084various joint ventures with unrelated third pestand a secured debt interest in one of -

joint ventures, as described below. The followiabl¢ sets forth the combined, summarized incomteratnts for our unconsolidated jc
ventures:

Three Months Ended March 31,

2012 2011
Income Statements:
Rental and other revenues $ 23,797 $ 24,20:
Expenses:
Rental property and other expenses 10,80: 11,37
Depreciation and amortization 6,25¢ 6,24¢
Impairment of real estate assets 7,18( —
Interest expense 5,66% 5,82¢
Total expenses 29,89¢ 23,44:
Net income/(loss) $ (6,20) $ 76C
Our share of:
Depreciation and amortization of real estate assets $ 2,05¢ $ 2,05¢
Impairment of real estate assets $ 1,002 % —
Interest expense $ 1,95¢ ¢ 2,13i
Net income/(loss) $ (786) $ 93¢
Our share of net income/(loss) $ (78¢) % 93¢t
Purchase accounting and management, leasing aedfeds adjustments 62€ 54C
Equity in earnings/(losses) of unconsolidated iatfis $ (160) ¢ 1,47¢

In 2011, we provided a $ 38.3 million interestly secured loan to our DLF | joint venture thaigmally was scheduled to mature
March 2012 . The loan bears interest at LIBOR (@08 basis points . During the first quarter of 2Q%Be maturity date of the loan v
extended to June 30, 2012 . We recorded $0.4 mihointerest income from this loan in interest amnker income during théhree month
ended March 31, 2012 . There was no interest inaec@rded for this loan during the three monthsedndarch 31, 2011.

During the first quarter of 2012 , we recorded @ rhillion as our share of impairment of real esteets on twoffice properties in ol
DLF 1 joint venture, due to a decline in projecsctupancy and a change in the assumed holdingdpefithose assets, which reduced
expected future cash flows from the properties.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)
(tabular dollar amounts in thousands, except per ui data)

5. Intangible Assets and Below Market Lease Lidlities

The following table sets forth total intangible etssand below market lease liabilities, net of auglated amortization:

March 31, December 31,
2012 2011
Assets:

Deferred financing costs $ 20,25:  $ 18,04«
Less accumulated amortization (6,67%) (5,797
13,57¢ 12,247
Deferred leasing costs (including lease incentare$ acquisition-related intangible assets) 176,61! 173,40!
Less accumulated amortization (60,987) (57,267)
115,62¢ 116,14:
Deferred financing and leasing costs, net $ 129,20 $ 128,39(

Liabilities (in accounts payable, accrued expensemsd other liabilities):
Acquisition-related below market lease liabilities $ 16,39C $ 16,44:
Less accumulated amortization (1,457 971
$ 1493 $ 15,47(

The following table sets forth amortization of inggble assets and below market lease liabilities:

Three Months Ended March 31,

2012 2011
Amortization of deferred financing costs $ 90z $ 821
Amortization of deferred leasing costs and acqoisitelated intangible assets (in depreciation @mdrtization) $ 6,44C $ 4,35¢
Amortization of lease incentives (in rental andestrevenues) $ 34 % 33¢€
Amortization of acquisition-related intangible assgn rental and other revenues) $ 27C % 18¢€
Amortization of acquisition-related below markedde liabilities (in rental and other revenues) $ (544 $ (25)

The following table sets forth scheduled future aimation of intangible assets and below markesédbilities:

Amortization
of Deferred
Leasing Costs Amortization
and Acquisition- Amortization of Acquisition-
Related Amortization of Acquisition- Related Below
Amortization Intangible Assets of Lease Related Market Lease
of Deferred (in Depreciation Incentives (in Intangible Assets Liabilities (in
Financing and Rental and Other (in Rental and Rental and Other
Costs Amortization) Revenues) Other Revenues) Revenues)
April 1, 2012 through December 31, 2012 $ 283 % 19,28: $ 981 $ 78¢ % (1,589
2013 3,30¢ 21,69( 1,15¢ 82C (2,099
2014 3,00¢ 17,49 992 52€ (2,019
2015 2,391 13,47¢ 771 341 (1,807
2016 1,02( 10,17¢ 60C 281 (1,517
Thereafter 1,02( 23,17: 2,341 74z (5,914
$ 13,57¢ $ 105,29: $ 6,83¢ $ 3,49¢ $ (14,939
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)
(tabular dollar amounts in thousands, except per ui data)

5. Intangible Assets and Below Market Lease Lidlities - Continued

The weighted average remaining amortization perfoddgeferred financing costs, deferred leasingscand acquisitiomelated intangibl
assets (in depreciation and amortization), leasenitives (in rental and other revenues), acquisitidated intangible assets (in rental
other revenues) and acquisition-related below ntddase liabilities (in rental and other revenues)ye 4.0 years, 6.2 years, 8.0 ye&s,
years an8.4 years, respectively, as of March 31, 2012 .

6. Mortgages and Notes Payable

The following table sets forth our mortgages antta@ayable:

March 31, December 31,

2012 2011
Secured indebtedness $ 746,78« $ 750,04
Unsecured indebtedness 1,157,19 1,153,16
Total mortgages and notes payable $ 190397 $ 1,903,21

At March 31, 2012 , our secured mortgage loans weoeired by real estate assets with an aggregdapretiated book value of 152
billion .

Our $ 475.0 million unsecured revolving credit faigiis scheduled to mature on July 27, 204 includes an accordion feature
allows for an additional $ 75.0 millioof borrowing capacity subject to additional lendemmitments. Assuming no defaults have occu
we have an option to extend the maturity for anitaafthl year. The interest rate at our current itreatings iSLIBOR plus 150 basis poir
and the annual facility fee is 35 basis points. irtterest rate and facility fee are based on tlghdri of the publicly announced ratings fi
Moody's Investors Service or Standard & Poor'srigatiServices. We use our revolving credit faciiiyworking capital purposes and for
shortterm funding of our development and acquisitiorivégt and, in certain instances, the repayment thieo debt. Continuing ability
borrow under the revolving credit facility allows to quickly capitalize on strategic opportunitasshortterm interest rates. There wa
141.0 million and $ 112.0 million outstanding unaer revolving credit facility at March 31, 2012daApril 26, 2012, respectively. At bot
March 31, 2012 and April 26, 2012 , we had $ 0.Rioni of outstanding letters of credit, which reducesatailability on our revolving crec
facility. As a result, the unused capacity of cevalving credit facility at March 31, 2012 and A6, 2012 was $ 333.8 million and362.¢
million , respectively.

In the first quarter of 2012 , we obtained a $228illion , seven -year unsecured bank term loamibganterest oLIBOR plus 190 bas
points . The proceeds were used to pay off amdhets outstanding under our revolving credit fagilit

We are currently in compliance with the debt covesand other requirements with respect to ourtanting debt.
7. Derivative Financial Instruments

We have six floating-to-fixed interest rate swaps $even -year periods each with respect to aneggtg of $225.0 million LIBOR-
based borrowings. These swaps effectively fix thdeulying LIBOR rate at a weighted average of 1%78The counterparties under
swaps are major financial institutions. These swap&e been designated as and are being accoumtad éash flow hedges with change
fair value recorded in other comprehensive incoaeheaeporting period. No gain or loss was recoghiedated to hedge ineffectiveness ¢
amounts excluded from effectiveness testing orcash flow hedges during the three months endediviitc2012 .

Amounts reported in accumulated other comprehersis® ("AOCL") related to derivatives will be res$ified to interest expense

interest payments are made on our variable-rate @elsing the period from April 1, 2012 through Mhar31, 2013, we estimate th$3.1
million will be reclassified as an increase to et expense.
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7. Derivative Financial Instruments - Continued

The following table sets forth the fair value ofr @erivative instruments:

March 31, December 31,
2012 2011
Liability Derivatives:
Derivatives designated as cash flow hedges in othebilities:
Interest rate swaps $ 1,00 ¢ 2,20z

The following table sets forth the effect of ouslkedlow hedges on AOCL and interest expense:

Three Months Ended March 31,

2012 2011
Derivatives Designated as Cash Flow Hedges:
Amount of unrealized gain recognized in AOCL on devatives (effective portion):
Interest rate swaps $ 1,10¢ % —
Amount of (gain) reclassified out of AOCL into contactual interest expense (effective portion):
Interest rate swaps $ (33 ¢ (29)

8. Noncontrolling Interests
Noncontrolling Interests in Consolidated Affiliates

At March 31, 2012 , noncontrolling interests in solidated affiliates relates to our joint venturartper's 50.0%nterest in offici
properties located in Richmond, VA. Our joint venrgtpartner is an unrelated third party.

9. Disclosure About Fair Value of Financial Instrument

The following summarizes the three levels of infgbts we use to measure fair value, as well asilsets and liabilities that we recogi
at fair value using those levels of inputs.

Level 1. Quoted prices in active markets for identicab#ssr liabilities.

Our Level 1 assets are investments in marketalderisies that we use to pay benefits under our qualified deferred compensat
plan. Our Level 1 liability is our non-qualified féered compensation obligation.

Level 2.0bservable inputs other than Level 1 prices, sgofuated prices for similar assets or liabilitigspted prices in markets that
not active; or other inputs that are observableaor be corroborated by observable market dataufostantially the full term of the relai
assets or liabilities.

Our Level 2 asset is the fair value of our mortgagad notes receivable, which was estimated byirtbeme approach utilizir

contractual cash flows and markesed interest rates to approximate the priceviioatd be paid in an orderly transaction betweenkei
participants.
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9. Disclosure About Fair Value of Financial Instrument - Continued

Our Level 2 liabilities include (1) the fair valeé our mortgages and notes payable, which was attiirby the income approach utiliz
contractual cash flows and markesed interest rates to approximate the priceviioatd be paid in an orderly transaction betweenkei
participants and (2) interest rate swaps whosevédire is determined using the market standard edelbgy of netting the discounted fut
fixed cash receipts and the discounted expectddblarcash payments. The variable cash paymemardhterest rate swaps are based o
expectation of future LIBOR interest rates (forwamatves) derived from observed market LIBOR intemase curves. In addition, cre
valuation adjustments are incorporated in thevialues to account for potential nonperformance, tisik were concluded to not be signific
inputs to the calculation for the periods presented

Level 3. Unobservable inputs that are supported by littlen@market activity and that are significant to fae value of the assets
liabilities.

Our Level 3 assets include our tax increment fimandond, which is not routinely traded but whoaé #alue is determined by 1
income approach utilizing contractual cash flowd amarketbased interest rates to estimate the projectedngtiten value based on quo
bid/ask prices for similar unrated municipal boladsl real estate assets and for-sale residentidbooiniums recorded at fair value on a non-
recurring basis as a result of our quarterly inmpaint analyses, which were valued using broker opiof value and substantiated by inte
cash flow projections.

Our Level 3 liability is the fair value of our finaing obligations, which was estimated by the ineapproach to approximate the p
that would be paid in an orderly transaction betwemrket participants, utilizing: (1) contractuakh flows; (2) markebased interest rat:
and (3) a number of other assumptions including ateifor space, competition for customers, changesarket rental rates, costs
operation and expected ownership periods.

The following tables set forth the assets and lités that we measure at fair value by level witttie fair value hierarchy. We deterrr
the level based on the lowest level of substaritipat used to determine fair value.

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Quoted Prices
in Active
Markets for Significant Significant
Identical Assets Observable Unobservable
March 31, 2012 or Liabilities Inputs Inputs
Assets:
Mortgages and notes receivable, at fair valye $ 17,48t % — 3 17,48t % —
Marketable securities of non-qualified deferred pemsation plan (in prepaid
expenses and other assets) 3,21¢ 3,21¢ — —
Tax increment financing bond (in prepaid expensekaiher assets) 15,07 — — 15,07¢
Total Assets $ 35,78: $ 3,21¢ % 17,48t $ 15,07t
Liabilities:
Mortgages and notes payable, at fair vaiye $ 2,000,03 $ — $ 2,000,033 $ —
Interest rate swaps (in accounts payable, accrxehses and other liabilities) 1,09¢ — 1,09¢ —
Non-qualified deferred compensation obligationg@tounts payable, accrued
expenses and other liabilities) 3,21¢ 3,21¢ — —
Financing obligations, at fair valyg 20,07¢ — — 20,07¢
Total Liabilities $ 202443 % 321¢ $ 2,001,133 $ 20,07¢
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9. Disclosure About Fair Value of Financial Instrument - Continued

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Quoted Prices
in Active
Markets for Significant Significant
December 31, Identical Assets Observable Unobservable
2011 or Liabilities Inputs Inputs

Assets:
Mortgages and notes receivable, at fair valye $ 18,99 $ — 3 18,99( $ —
Marketable securities of non-qualified deferred pemsation plan (in prepaid

expenses and other assets) 3,14¢ 3,14¢ — —
Tax increment financing bond (in prepaid expensekaiher assets) 14,78¢ — — 14,78¢
Impaired real estate assets and for-sale residlentidominiums 12,767 — — 12,76

Total Assets $ 49,69 % 3,14¢  $ 18,99 $ 27,55t
Liabilities:
Mortgages and notes payable, at fair vadye $ 199293 % — $ 199293 $ —
Interest rate swaps (in accounts payable, accrxgehses and other liabilities) 2,20z — 2,20z —
Non-qualified deferred compensation obligationg@tounts payable, accrued

expenses and other liabilities) 3,14¢ 3,14¢ — —
Financing obligations, at fair valyg 18,86¢ — — 18,86¢

Total Liabilities $ 201715 $ 3,14¢ $§ 199513 $ 18,86¢

(1) Amounts carried at historical cost on oun€didated Balance Sheets at March 31, 2012 andrbleer 31, 2011, respectively.

The following table sets forth the changes in oewvel 3 asset, which is recorded at fair value anGansolidated Balance Sheets on a
recurring basis:

Three Months Ended March 31,

2012 2011
Asset:
Tax Increment Financing Bond:
Beginning balance $ 14,78¢ $ 15,69¢
Unrealized gain/(loss) (in AOCL) 287 (135
Ending balance $ 15,078 $ 15,56¢

In 2007, we acquired a tax increment financing bassbciated with a parking garage developed byhis.bond amortizes to maturity
2020 . The estimated fair value at March 31, 2052 $2.0 millionbelow the outstanding principal due on the bondhéf discount rate us
to fair value this bond was 100 basis points highrelower, the fair value of the bond would havemé0.6 million lower of0.6 millior
higher, respectively, as of March 31, 2Q1Qurrently, we intend to hold this bond and haseatuded that we will not be required to sell
bond before recovery of the bond principal. Payradrihe principal and interest for the bond is gueed by us and, therefore, we t
recorded no credit losses related to the bondenthihee months ended March 31, 2012 and 200Here is no legal right of offset with 1
liability, which we report as a financing obligatiarelated to this tax increment financing bond.
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9. Disclosure About Fair Value of Financial Instrument - Continued

The following table sets forth quantitative infortioa about the unobservable inputs of our LevesS8es which is recorded at fair va
on our Consolidated Balance Sheets on a recurasighb

Fair Value at Valuation Unobservable Discount
March 31, 2012 Technique Input Rate
Tax increment financing bond $ 15,07¢ Income approach Discount rate 10.71%

10. Share-based Payment

During the three months ended March 31, 2012 Chwapany granted 190,8&Bock options with an exercise price equal to tlsiog
market price of a share of its Common Stock ordiite of grant. The fair value of each option giamgstimated on the date of grant using
Black-Scholes option pricing model, which resulbeda weighted average grant date fair value peresbd$ 5.47 . During théhree month
ended March 31, 2012 , the Company also granted883shares of time-based restricted stock and 87sb@res of total returipase:
restricted stock with weighted average grant date falues per share of $ 32.18 and $ 38.71 , otisedy. We recorded stockase!
compensation expense of $2.4 million and $2.0 amlliluring the three months ended March 31, 20122844 , respectively. Atlarch 31
2012 , there was $9.4 million of total unrecogniz#dckbased compensation costs, which will be recognmest a weighted avera
remaining contractual term of 2.8 years.

11. Accumulated Other Comprehensive Los

The following table sets forth the components afumeulated other comprehensive loss:

Three Months Ended March 31,

2012 2011
Tax increment financing bond:
Beginning balance $ (2,309 $ (2,543
Unrealized gain/(loss) on tax increment financiogd 287 (135)
Ending balance (2,027 (2,67¢)
Cash flow hedges:
Beginning balance (3,425 (1,105
Unrealized gains on cash flow hedges 1,10¢ —
Amortization of settled cash flow hedges (39) (29)
Ending balance (2,359 (1,134
Total accumulated other comprehensive loss $ (4379 $ (3,819
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12. Discontinued Operation:

The following table sets forth our operations whieljuired classification as discontinued operations

Rental and other revenues
Operating expenses:
Rental property and other expenses
Depreciation and amortization
Total operating expenses
Income from discontinued operations
Net gains on disposition of discontinued operations

Total discontinued operations

The following table sets forth the major classeassfets and liabilities of the properties heldstle:

Assets:

Land
Buildings and tenant improvements
Accumulated depreciation

Net real estate assets
Accrued straight line rents receivable
Deferred leasing costs, net
Prepaid expenses and other assets

Real estate and other assets, net, held for sale

Tenant security deposits, deferred rents and ad@ostg1)

(1) Included in accounts payable, accrued expensesthed liabilities
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Three Months Ended March 31,

2012 2011

$ 42¢ 1,241

19z 44%

15z 25€

34¢ 701

83 54C

5,13¢ —

$ 5,21 54C

March 31, December 31,
2012 2011

$ 80z 1,901

9,44¢ 16,18«

(3,299 (5,529

6,954 12,56:

39:¢ 39¢

20t 19t

4 104

$ 7,55¢€ 13,26(
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13. Earnings Per Unit

The following table sets forth the computation asiz and diluted earnings per unit:

Three Months Ended March 31,

2012 2011
Earnings per Common Unit - basic:
Numerator:
Income from continuing operations $ 13,117  $ 11,911
Net (income) attributable to noncontrolling inteéeem consolidated affiliates from continuing opéras (1849 (123
Distributions on Preferred Units (627) (1,67%)
Income from continuing operations available for coom unitholders 12,30¢ 10,11
Income from discontinued operations available fammon unitholders 5,217 54C
Net income available for common unitholders $ 17,52: % 10,65!
Denominator:
Denominator for basic earnings per Common Unit ighied average unig) (2) 76,15¢ 75,19¢
Earnings per Common Unit - basic:
Income from continuing operations available for coom unitholders $ 0.1€ $ 0.1z
Income from discontinued operations available fammon unitholders 0.07 0.01
Net income available for common unitholders $ 02: $ 0.14
Earnings per Common Unit - diluted:
Numerator:
Income from continuing operations $ 13,117  $ 11,911
Net (income) attributable to noncontrolling inteéeem consolidated affiliates from continuing opéras (1849 (123
Distributions on Preferred Units (627) (1,67%)
Income from continuing operations available for coom unitholders 12,30¢ 10,11:
Income from discontinued operations available fommon unitholders 5,217 54C
Net income available for common unitholders $ 17,528 $ 10,65
Denominator:
Denominator for basic earnings per Common Unit givied average units) (2) 76,15t 75,19¢
Add:
Stock options using the treasury method 132 18t
Denominator for diluted earnings per Common Urdidjusted weighted average units and assumed coone(s) 76,281 75,38:
Earnings per Common Unit - diluted:
Income from continuing operations available for coom unitholders $ 0.1€ $ 0.1z
Income from discontinued operations available fammon unitholders 0.07 0.01
Net income available for common unitholders $ 02: $ 0.14

(1) There were 0.6 million and 0.3 million optiomststanding during the three months ended Mar¢i2312 and 2011respectively, that were not incluc
in the computation of diluted earnings per unitéaese the impact of including such options woulcig-dilutive.

(2) Includes all unvested restricted stock singaldnds on such restricted stock are riorieitable
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14. Segment Information

The following table summarizes the rental and otkeenues and net operating income, the primanysitng propertylevel performanc
metric which is defined as rental and other reveress rental property and other expenses, for egootable segment:

Three Months Ended March 31,

2012 2011
Rental and Other Revenues(1)

Office:
Atlanta, GA $ 15,78 $ 11,90:
Greenville, SC 3,504 3,50¢
Kansas City, MO 3,762 3,651
Memphis, TN 10,13¢ 10,10:
Nashville, TN 15,60: 14,61¢
Orlando, FL 2,68¢ 2,31¢
Piedmont Triad, NC 5,081 5,364
Pittsburgh, PA 9,087 —
Raleigh, NC 19,78: 19,32:
Richmond, VA 11,51 11,37¢
Tampa, FL 17,13¢ 16,37¢
Total Office Segment 114,07¢ 98,54:

Industrial:

Atlanta, GA 3,774 3,93¢
Piedmont Triad, NC 3,16¢ 2,971
Total Industrial Segment 6,93¢ 6,911

Retail:
Kansas City, MO 8,92t 8,89¢
Total Retail Segment 8,92t 8,89¢
Total Rental and Other Revenues $ 129,94. $ 114,35
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14. Segment Information -Continued

Three Months Ended March 31,

2012 2011
Net Operating Income: (1)
Office:
Atlanta, GA $ 10,40« 7,47¢
Greenville, SC 2,13¢ 2,071
Kansas City, MO 2,364 2,11C
Memphis, TN 6,10¢ 5,74
Nashville, TN 10,61 9,631
Orlando, FL 1,417 1,16¢
Piedmont Triad, NC 3,23t 3,59¢
Pittsburgh, PA 4,28k —
Raleigh, NC 13,86¢ 13,19:
Richmond, VA 7,89( 7,84¢
Tampa, FL 10,84 10,10¢
Total Office Segment 73,16( 62,94:
Industrial:
Atlanta, GA 2,891 2,83:
Piedmont Triad, NC 2,29( 2,21¢
Total Industrial Segment 5,181 5,051
Retail:
Kansas City, MO 5,54( 5,27¢
Total Retail Segment 5,54( 5,27¢
Total Net Operating Income 83,88 73,26¢
Reconciliation to income from continuing operationsbefore disposition of condominiums and equity in&nings/
(losses) of unconsolidated affiliates:
Depreciation and amortization (38,362) (33,55¢)
General and administrative expense (9,735 (7,644
Interest expense (24,807 (23,549
Other income 2,23( 1,87¢
Income from continuing operations before dispositid condominiums and equity in earnings/(lossésinconsolidated
affiliates $ 13,21: 10,39¢

(1) Net of discontinued operatiol
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15. Subsequent Event

In early April 2012 , the Company issued 307,80@res of Common Stock from sales in the first tguaosf 2012 under our equity sé
agreements at an average gross sales price of33g8@r&hare raising net proceeds, after sales cesions and expenses, of $10.0 million .

On April 25, 2012 , we sold an office property ltedhnear Tampa, FL for gross proceeds of $9.5anillWe expect to record a gain
disposition of discontinued operations of $1.4 imillrelated to this transaction.

On April 27, 2012 , we acquired a 178,300 squacd @dfice property in Cary, NC from our DLF | joinenture for $26.0 million The
joint venture's net proceeds$25.3 million were all used to reduce the balarfdb@ advance due to us from the joint venture.
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ITEM 2. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FIN ANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The Company is a fully integrated, self-administesand selfmanaged equity REIT that provides leasing, managenaevelopmen
construction and other custometated services for our properties and for thiadtips. The Company conducts virtually all of itgities
through the Operating Partnership. The OperatingnBeship is managed by the Company, its sole gépartner. At March 31, 2012we
owned or had an interest in 338 in-service offindustrial and retail properties, encompassing @xiprately 34.5 millionsquare feet, whic
includes one office property with associated anmesiplanned for development aggregating 228,00@rsgfeet, oneompleted but not y
stabilized office redevelopment property encompeasdil7,000square feet and a 12.5% interest in a 261,000 sqoat office propert
directly owned by the Company (not included in fBperating Partnership's Consolidated FinancialeStahts); 14 fosale residenti
condominiums and a 218nit rental residential property under developmevé. are based in Raleigh, North Carolina, and oopgrties an
development land are located in Florida, Georgiasshksippi, Missouri, North Carolina, Pennsylvangquth Carolina, Tennessee
Virginia. Additional information about us can beufa on our website atww.highwoods.com Information on our website is not part of -
Quarterly Report.

You should read the following discussion and analys conjunction with the accompanying Consolidaténancial Statements &
related notes contained elsewhere in this Quarkelyort.

Disclosure Regarding Forward-Looking Statements

Some of the information in this Quarterly Reportymeontain forwardeoking statements. Such statements include, iticodar,
statements about our plans, strategies and prespader this section. You can identify forward-lomk statements by our use of forward-
looking terminology such as “may,” “will,” “expeét;anticipate,” “estimate,” “continuedr other similar words. Although we believe that
plans, intentions and expectations reflected isuggested by such forwaloleking statements are reasonable, we cannot ageurthat ou
plans, intentions or expectations will be achiewsthen considering such forwatdeking statements, you should keep in mind thiofahg
important factors that could cause our actual tesaldiffer materially from those contained in doyward-looking statement:

» the financial condition of our customers could derate

e we may not be able to lease or release secondaj@mespace, defined as previously occupied spgatebecomes available for lee
quickly or on as favorable terms as old leases;

* we may not be able to lease our newly constructéldibgs as quickly or on as favorable terms agipélly anticipatec

* we may not be able to complete development, adgprisireinvestment, disposition or joint venturejpcts as quickly or on
favorable terms as anticipated,;

» development activity by our competitors in our &rig markets could result in an excessive supplyftite, industrial and rete
properties relative to customer demand,;

e our markets may suffer declines in economic grc
e unanticipated increases in interest rates coulease our debt service co
e unanticipated increases in operating expenses cagdtively impact our operating rest

e we may not be able to meet our liquidity requiretaesr obtain capital on favorable terms to fund warking capital needs a
growth initiatives or to repay or refinance outstisug debt upon maturity; and

» the Company could lose key executive offic

This list of risks and uncertainties, however, @ imtended to be exhaustive. You should also revthe other cautionary statements
make in “ltem 1A. Business — Risk Factors” setHdr our 2011 Annual Report on Form KO-Given these uncertainties, you should
place undue reliance on forwalabking statements. We undertake no obligation ubliply release the results of any revisions tost
forward-looking statements to reflect any futuremt or circumstances or to reflect the occurrefiesmanticipated events.
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Executive Summary
Our Strategic Plan focuses on:
e owning highguality, differentiated real estate assets in &itel submarkets in our core mark

e improving the operating results of our existinggedies through concentrated leasing, asset maragenost control and custor
service efforts;

» developing and acquiring office properties in kefili submarkets that improve the overall quality aur portfolio and genere
attractive returns over the long-term for our stuamllers;

» selectively disposing of properties no longer cdesed to be core assets primarily due to locatge, quality and overall strate
fit; and

* maintaining a conservative, flexible balance shé#t ample liquidity to meet our funding needs gmdwth prospect

While we own and operate a limited number of indaktretail and residential properties, our opegtresults depend heavily
successfully leasing and operating our office priggg Economic growth and employment levels in cane markets are and will continue
be important determinative factors in predicting future operating results.

The key components affecting our rental and otkgemues are average occupancy, rental rates, neslogeents placed in servi
acquisitions and dispositions. Average occupancegly increases during times of improving ecormgrowth, as our ability to lease sp
outpaces vacancies that occur upon the expiratibegisting leases. Average occupancy generalljirtescduring times of slower econor
growth, when new vacancies tend to outpace ouityalil lease space. Asset acquisitions, dispositamd new developments placed in se
directly impact our rental revenues and could impmag average occupancy, depending upon the occypate of the properties that
acquired, sold or placed in service. A further @ador of the predictability of future revenuestis expected lease expirations of our portf
As a result, in addition to seeking to increase axgrage occupancy by leasing current vacant speea@lso must concentrate our lea
efforts on renewing leases on expiring space.

Whether or not our rental revenue tracks averagapancy proportionally depends upon whether remtteunew leases signed are hig
or lower than the rents under the previous leasesualized rental revenues from second generadiasds signed during any particular
are generally less than 15% of our total annualtaevenues. During the first quarter of 2012 ,leesed 1.0 milliorsquare feet of seco
generation office space, defined as space previameslupied under our ownership that becomes aveifal lease or acquired vacant sp
with a weighted average term of 5.3 years. On @ertenant improvements for such leases were §®A@quare foot, lease commiss|
were $3.20 per square foot and rent concessiors $888 per square foot. Annualized GAAP rents usdeh leases were $21.88r squar
foot, or 1.7% higher than under previous leases.

We strive to maintain a diverse, stable and credlifay customer base. We have an internal guidelinereby customers that account
more than 3% of our revenues are periodically reetk with the Company's Board of Directors. Curgntio customer accounts for m
than 3% of our revenues other than the Federal @owent, which accounts for 9.0% of our revenued, AR&T, which accounts for 3.0%f
our revenues.

Our expenses primarily consist of rental propentpemses, depreciation and amortization, general andinistrative expenses ¢
interest expense. From time to time, expensesimttade impairments of assets held for use. Rgrtgberty expenses are expenses asso
with our ownership and operation of rental progsrtand include expenses that vary somewhat propatély to occupancy levels, suct
common area maintenance and utilities, and expehaeslo not vary based on occupancy, such as gyoees and insurance. Deprecia
and amortization is a notash expense associated with the ownership oforegerty and generally remains relatively consiseath yea
unless we buy, place in service or sell assetsesime depreciate our properties and related bgjldind tenant improvement assets 1
straightline basis over a fixed life. General and admiatbfie expenses, net of amounts capitalized, copsistarily of management a
employee salaries and other personnel costs, @igpoverhead and long-term incentive compensation.
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We anticipate commencing up to $150 million of n@ewelopment in the remainder of 2012ny such projects would not be place:
service until 2013 or beyond. We also anticipatguang up to $300 million of new properties andling up to $150 million of norcore
properties in the remainder of 2012 .

We intend to maintain a conservative and flexibdédahce sheet that allows us to capitalize on falerdevelopment and acquisit
opportunities as they arise. As of March 31, 20&dr,mortgages and notes payable represented 4#.#¥ undepreciated book value of
assets. We expect this ratio to remain under 508fagithe remainder of 2012 .

Results of Operations
Three Months Ended March 31, 2012 and 2011
Rental and Other Revenues

Rental and other revenues from continuing operatisare $15.6 million , or 13.6% , higher in thesffiguarter of 2012s compared
2011 primarily due to the acquisitions of an office peoly in Raleigh, NC in the second quarter of 20ad affice properties in Pittsburg
PA and Atlanta, GA in the third quarter of 2011 iethaccounted for $12.1 million of the increasem8agroperty revenues we$d.1 millior
higher in the first quarter of 2012 as compared@bl primarily due to higher operating expense recogegigd termination fees. Additiona
same property average occupancy increased fron¥®hahe first quarter of 2011 to 90.6% in the tfigaiarter of 2012nd same propel
annualized GAAP rents per square foot increasemh $28.23 in the first quarter of 2011 to $18.62ha first quarter of 2012 We expec
rental and other revenues for the remainder of 2@djusted for any discontinued operations andtahdil acquisition activity, to be higr
compared to the same period in 2Q&imarily due to the contribution of acquisitionsade in the third quarter of 2011 and slightly hi
average occupancy as a result of a slightly impmgpeéconomic outlook.

Operating Expenses

Rental property and other expenses were $5.2 millar 12.7% , higher in the first quarter of 2G2compared to 20Jdrimarily due t
recent acquisitions, which accounted for $5.9 onillof the increase. Same property operating exgensee $1.0 million lower in thérst
quarter of 2012 as compared to 2@iimarily due to the mild winter in 2012. We expeental property and other expenses for the renaz
of 2012 , adjusted for any discontinued operatiand additional acquisition activity, to be highempared to the same period 2011
primarily due to the contribution of acquisitionsde in the third quarter of 2011.

Operating margin, defined as rental and other neegress rental property and other expenses exgressa percentage of rental
other revenues, was higher at 64.5% in the firstrign of 2012 , as compared to 64.2% in the fitsrter of 2011 Operating margin
expected to be similar for the remainder of 2012ampared to the same period in 2011 .

Depreciation and amortization was $4.8 million 1dr3% , higher in the first quarter of 2012 as paned to 201primarily due to rece|
acquisitions. We expect depreciation expense ferémainder of 2012adjusted for any discontinued operations andtiail acquisitio
activity, to be higher compared to the same pendzD11 primarily due to the contribution of acqtisss made in the third quarter of 2011.

General and administrative expenses were $1.9omi)lor 24.1% , higher in the first quarter of 2@2compared to 20Xkimarily due t
higher salaries and incentive compensation. We axgeneral and administrative expenses for the iratea of 2012to decrease over t
same period in 2011 due to lower dead deal andeptyppcquisition costs.

Interest Expense

Interest expense was $1.3 million , or 5.3% , highehe first quarter of 2012 as compared to 2pddarily due to higher average d
balances from recent acquisitions, offset by loweerage interest rates and financing obligatiorragt expense. We anticipate inte
expense will increase for the remainder of 2012@spared to the same period in 2ade to the full year impact of higher average
balances from acquisitions, partly offset by lowgerage interest rates on our outstanding borrasvamgl lower financing obligation inter
expense in 2012 .
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I nterest and Other Income

Interest and other income was $0.4 million higimethie first quarter of 2012 as compared to 2pdtharily due to interest income on
advance to unconsolidated affiliate in the secomartgr of 2011. We expect interest and other incton¢he remainder of 201 be lowe
compared to the same period in 2011 due to theymegiat of a portion of the advance due to us from afnour joint ventures.

Equity in Earnings of Unconsolidated Affiliates

Equity in earnings of unconsolidated affiliates ds6 million lower in the first quarter of 2012 e@mpared to 201frimarily due to oL
share of impairment of real estate assets on tfiweqgroperties in our DLF | joint venture.

Net Gains on Disposition of Discontinued Operations

Net gains on disposition of discontinued operatimese $5.1 million higher in the first quarter di12 as compared to 20Hue to th
disposition of 96 rental residential units in Kam&zity, MO in the first quarter of 2012.

Dividends on Preferred Stock

Dividends on Preferred Stock were $1.1 million lovire the first quarter of 2012 as compared to 2dl#& to the redemption of
remaining Series B Preferred Shares in the secoadey of 2011.
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Liquidity and Capital Resources

Overview

Our goal is to maintain a conservative and flexidéance sheet with access to multiple sourcebf @nd equity capital and suffici
availability under our revolving credit facility. 8/generally use rents received from customers mal four operating expenses, caj
expenditures and distributions. To fund propertywgitions, development activity or building rentiwas and repay debt upon maturity,
may use current cash balances, sell assets, at#airdebt and/or issue equity. Our debt generalhsists of mortgage debt, unsecured
securities and borrowings under our revolving drésdiility.

Statements of Cash Flows

We report and analyze our cash flows based on tipgractivities, investing activities and financiagtivities. The following table s¢
forth the changes in the Company’s cash flows (Bdausands):

Three Months Ended March 31,

2012 2011 Change
Net Cash Provided By Operating Activities $ 22,05( $ 28,48 $ (6,439
Net Cash Used In Investing Activities (12,89¢) (14,240 1,34«
Net Cash Provided By/(Used In) Financing Activities (8,127) 2,36( (10,487
Total Cash Flows $ 1,027 $ 16,604 $ (15,577

In calculating net cash related to operating ati¢isj depreciation and amortization, which are nash expenses, are added back t
income. As a result, we have historically generagubsitive amount of cash from operating actisitierom period to period, cash flow fr
operations depends primarily upon changes in otrinewme, as discussed more fully above under “Resi Operations,’changes i
receivables and payables, and net additions oredses in our overall portfolio, which affect thecamt of depreciation and amortizat
expense.

Net cash related to investing activities generadlgtes to capitalized costs incurred for leasing @ajor building improvements and
acquisition, development, disposition and joint tuea capital activity. During periods of signifidanet acquisition and/or developm
activity, our cash used in such investing actigitigll generally exceed cash provided by investagvities, which typically consists of ce
received upon the sale of properties and distidimstiof capital from our joint ventures.

Net cash related to financing activities generadliates to distributions, incurrence and repayneértebt, and issuances, repurchass
redemptions of Common Stock, Common Units and PedeStock. As discussed previously, we use a fégmit amount of our cash to fu
distributions. Whether or not we have increasdhénoutstanding balances of debt during a peripedgs generally upon the net effect of
acquisition, disposition, development and joint tuea activity. We generally use our revolving ctefdicility for working capital purpose
which means that during any given period, in otdeminimize interest expense, we may record sigaifi repayments and borrowings ur
our revolving credit facility.

The change in net cash related to operating deivin the first three months of 2012 as compatethé same period in 20Mas
primarily due to the timing of real estate tax pays, partly offset by net operating income fromuasitions made in the third quartet
2011.

The change in net cash related to investing ag#viin the first three months of 2012 as compacethé same period in 20Mas
primarily due to higher net proceeds from the disfian of real estate assets in the first three thwof 2012, partly offset by higher cap
improvements in the first three months of 2012tezlao acquisitions made in the third quarter df20

The change in net cash related to financing a@#iin the first three months of 2012 as compatethé same period in 20Mas

primarily due to lower net borrowings in the fitetee months of 2012, partly offset by higher pestefrom the issuance of Common Stoc
the first quarter of 2012.
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Capitalization

The following table sets forth the Company’s cdjztdion (in thousands, except per share amounts):

March 31, December 31,
2012 2011

Mortgages and notes payable, at recorded book value $ 190397 $ 1,903,21
Financing obligations $ 31,11C $ 31,44«
Preferred Stock, at liquidation value $ 29,077 $ 29,077
Common Stock outstanding 73,60¢ 72,64¢
Common Units outstanding (not owned by the Company) 3,72¢ 3,73(
Per share stock price at period end $ 3332 % 29.67
Market value of Common Stock and Common Units $ 2,576,86' $ 2,266,13!
Total market capitalization $ 454103 $ 4,229,86!

At March 31, 2012 , our mortgages and notes payaipieesented 41.9% of our total market capitalimatind consisted &746.8 millior
of secured indebtedness with a weighted averaggestt rate of 5.51% and $1,157.2 millioh unsecured indebtedness with a weig
average interest rate of 4.61%he secured indebtedness was collateralizeddlyestate assets with an aggregate undepreciatédviatuie o
$1.2 billion .

Current and Future Cash Needs

Rental and other revenues are our principal soofrfends to meet our short-term liquidity requirertee Other sources of funds for short-
term liquidity needs include available working dapand borrowings under our existing revolvingditéacility, which had $ 362.8 milliof
availability at April 26, 2012 . Our showrm liquidity requirements primarily consist of espting expenses, interest and princ
amortization on our debt, dividends and distribngicand capital expenditures, including building ioy@ment costs, tenant improverr
costs and lease commissions. Building improvemanés capital costs to maintain existing buildings tbpically related to a speci
customer. Tenant improvements are the costs ratjtoreustomize space for the specific needs obeousts. We anticipate that our availe
cash and cash equivalents and cash provided bwatopgrctivities, together with cash available frborrowings under our revolving cre
facility, will be adequate to meet our short-tefquidity requirements.

Our longterm liquidity uses generally consist of the ratient or refinancing of debt upon maturity (incluglimortgage debt, o
revolving and construction credit facilities, tetaans and other unsecured debt), funding of exjséind new building development or i
infrastructure projects and funding acquisitiondoildings and development land. Additionally, waynfrom time to time, retire some or
of our remaining outstanding Preferred Stock andfiesecured debt securities through redemptionsn oparket repurchases, prival
negotiated acquisitions or otherwise.

We expect to meet our long-term liquidity needetigh a combination of:

» cash flow from operating activitie

e borrowings under our revolving credit facili

» the issuance of unsecured d

» the issuance of secured di

» the issuance of equity securities by the Compart@Operating Partnership; ¢

» the disposition of nogere asset

Recent Acquisition and Disposition Activity

During the first quarter of 2012 , we sold 96 vaaamtal residential units in Kansas City, MO foogs proceeds of $ 11.0 millioiWVe
recorded gain on disposition of discontinued openatof $ 5.1 million related to this disposition.
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On April 25, 2012 , we sold an office property ltmdhnear Tampa, FL for gross proceeds of $9.5anillWe expect to record a gain
disposition of discontinued operations of $1.4 imillrelated to this transaction.

On April 27, 2012 , we acquired a 178,300 squacd @dfice property in Cary, NC from our DLF | joinenture for $26.0 million The
joint venture net proceeds $25.3 million were all used to reduce the balarfdd® advance due to us from the joint venture.

Recent Financing Activity

We have entered into separate ATM Equity Offedn&ales Agreements (the “Sales Agreemenisth each of Merrill Lynch, Pierc
Fenner & Smith Incorporated, Mitsubishi UFJ Sedesi{USA), Inc., Morgan Keegan & Company, Inc. &BIC Capital Markets, LLC (eac
an “Agent” and, together, the “Agents’Q)inder the terms of the Sales Agreements, the Compaay offer and sell shares of its Comr
Stock from time to time through the Agents, actagyagents of the Company or as principals. Saldéseohares, if any, may be made
means of ordinary brokers' transactions on the Mevk Stock Exchange or otherwise at market pricqevailing at the time of sale, at prii
related to prevailing market prices or at negotigtgces or as otherwise agreed with any of thendggeSubject to the terms and condition
each Sales Agreement, each Agent will use its cawially reasonable efforts to sell on the Compabghkalf any shares to be offered by
Company under that Sales Agreement. During the diuarter of 2012 , the Company issued 785,8f&res of Common Stock under tt
agreements at an average gross sales price 083 B&r share raising net proceeds, after sales @siams and expenses, of $ 25.4 million
We paid $ 0.4 million in sales commissions to Mettynch, Pierce, Fenner & Smith Incorporated dgrihe first quarter of 2012In early
April 2012 , the Company issued 307,%}ares of Common Stock from sales in the first tguanf 2012 under these agreements at an ay
gross sales price of $32.93 per share raising metepds, after sales commissions and expense4,0dd #illion . We paid $0.2 milliomn
sales commissions to Merrill Lynch, Pierce, Ferfa@mith Incorporated during April 2012 .

Our $ 475.0 million unsecured revolving credit fagiis scheduled to mature on July 27, 20drid includes an accordion feature
allows for an additional $ 75.0 millioof borrowing capacity subject to additional lendemmitments. Assuming no defaults have occu
we have an option to extend the maturity for anitealthl year. The interest rate at our current reatings isLIBOR plus 150 basis poir
and the annual facility fee is 35 basis points. rterest rate and facility fee are based on tighdr of the publicly announced ratings fi
Moody's Investors Service or Standard & Poor'srigatiServices. We use our revolving credit faciiiyworking capital purposes and for
shortterm funding of our development and acquisitionivétgt and, in certain instances, the repayment thieo debt. Continuing ability
borrow under the revolving credit facility allows @wo quickly capitalize on strategic opportunitasshortterm interest rates. There wa
141.0 million and $ 112.0 million outstanding unader revolving credit facility at March 31, 2012daApril 26, 2012, respectively. At bot
March 31, 2012 and April 26, 2012 , we had $ 0.lioni of outstanding letters of credit, which reducesahailability on our revolving crec
facility. As a result, the unused capacity of cewvalving credit facility at March 31, 2012 and A@b, 2012 was $ 333.8 million and362.¢
million , respectively.

In the first quarter of 2012 , we obtained a $228illion , seven -year unsecured bank term loamibganterest oLIBOR plus 190 bas
points . The proceeds were used to pay off amdhets outstanding under our revolving credit fagilit

We regularly evaluate the financial condition o tlenders that participate in our credit facilitigsing publicly available informatic
Based on this review, we currently expect our lesdehich are major financial institutions, to perh their obligations under our exist
facilities.

For information regarding our interest hedging\atitis and other market risks associated with abtdinancing activities, see "ltem
Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About MarRisk."

Covenant Compliance

We are currently in compliance with the covenamtd ather requirements with respect to our outstapdiebt. Although we expect
remain in compliance with these covenants andgdtipat least the next year, depending upon durdwperating performance, property
financing transactions and general economic camitiwe cannot assure you that we will continueetin compliance.

Our revolving credit facility and bank term loansquire us to comply with customary operating comtmaand various financi
requirements. Upon an event of default on the rémnglcredit facility, the lenders having at leaét ®%6 of the total commitments under
revolving credit facility can accelerate all boriags then outstanding, and we could be prohibitethfborrowing any further amounts un
our revolving credit facility, which would advergadffect our ability to fund our operations.
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The Operating Partnership has $391.2 million cagyamount of 2017 bonds outstanding and $200.@omilarrying amount of 20:
bonds outstanding. The indenture that governs thatstanding notes requires us to comply with qusty operating covenants and vari
financial ratios. The trustee or the holders deast 25.0%n principal amount of either series of bonds ceceterate the principal amount
such series upon written notice of a default thatains uncured after 60 days.

We may not be able to repay, refinance or exterydoarall of our debt at maturity or upon any accatien. If any refinancing is done
higher interest rates, the increased interest esgpeauld adversely affect our cash flow and abititypay distributions. Any such refinanc
could also impose tighter financial ratios and otmvenants that restrict our ability to take atsidhat could otherwise be in our best inte
such as funding new development activity, makingasfunistic acquisitions, repurchasing our seasitir paying distributions.

Off Balance Sheet Arrangements

In 2011, we provided a $ 38.3 million interestly secured loan to our DLF | joint venture thaigmally was scheduled to mature
March 2012 . The loan bears interest at LIBOR (@06 basis points . During the first quarter of 2Q%Be maturity date of the loan v
extended to June 30, 2012 . We recorded $0.4 mitifointerest income from this loan in interest arder income during thiaree month
ended March 31, 2012There was no interest income recorded for thas Iduring the three months ended March 31, 201Aphi 2012, the
net proceeds of $25.3 millidnom the sale of an office property in the joinhtiere were used to reduce the balance of the advdune to u
from the joint venture.

During the first quarter of 2012 , we recorded & rhillion as our share of impairment of real es&deets on twoffice properties in o
DLF I joint venture, due to a decline in projectaztupancy and a change in the presumed holdinggefithose assets, which reducec
expected future cash flows from the properties.

In May 2012 , our DLF Il joint venture expects tbtain a $50.0 million , thregyear secured mortgage loan from a third party lg
bearing a fixed interest rate of 3.5% on $39.1iamllof the loan and a floating interest rate of OR plus 250 basis points on $10.9 millioh
the loan, which will be used by the joint ventused¢pay a secured loan at maturity to a third parider.

There were no other significant changes to oubafance sheet arrangements in the three months éfaleh 31, 2012 For informatiol
regarding our off balance sheet arrangements a¢bieer 31, 2011 , see Note 9 to the ConsolidateanEial Statements in our 20Ahnua
Report on Form 10-K.

Critical Accounting Estimates

There were no changes made by management to thealcaccounting policies in the three months endiéatch 31, 2012 For ¢
description of our critical accounting estimates SManagement's Discussion and Analysis of Firsr@ondition and Results of Operations -
Critical Accounting Estimates” in our 2011 Annuapdrt on Form 10-K.

Non-GAAP Measures - FFO and NOI

The Company believes that Funds from Operations@'F and FFO per share are beneficial to managementredtors and a
important indicators of the performance of any 8gREIT. Because FFO and FFO per share calculaggolide such factors as deprecial
amortization and impairment of real estate asselggains or losses from sales of operating reatesissets, which can vary among owne
identical assets in similar conditions based onohisal cost accounting and useful life estimatégy facilitate comparisons of operat
performance between periods and between other REWBnagement believes that historical cost accagnfor real estate assets
accordance with GAAP implicitly assumes that thtugeaof real estate assets diminishes predictably twe. Since real estate values t
historically risen or fallen with market conditigneany industry investors and analysts have coresitthe presentation of operating res
for real estate companies that use historical @ospunting to be insufficient on a standalone basisa result, management believes tha
use of FFO and FFO per share, together with theined) GAAP presentations, provide a more completgewstanding of the Compar
performance relative to its competitors and a miof@med and appropriate basis on which to makeés@ats involving operating, financii
and investing activities.

FFO and FFO per share are M@AAP financial measures and therefore do not reeset income or net income per share as defin
GAAP. Net income and net income per share as difiyeGAAP are the most relevant measures in deténgiithe Company's operat
performance because FFO and FFO per share inctljdstments that investors may deem subjective, sscadding back expenses suc
depreciation, amortization and impairment. Furthanem FFO per share does not depict the amountatt@aties directly to the stockhold
benefit. Accordingly, FFO and FFO per share shogder be considered as
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alternatives to net income or net income per shaiadicators of the Company's operating perforrmanc

The Company's presentation of FFO is consistertt WEO as defined by the National Association of IRestate Investment Tru:
(“NAREIT™), which is calculated as follows:

* Netincome/(loss) computed in accordance with G/
e Less net income attributable to noncontrolling iests in consolidated affiliate
» Plus depreciation and amortization of depreciaplerating propertie

* Less gains, or plus losses, from sales of depriecigerating properties, plus impairments on depbde operating properties &
excluding items that are classified as extraorgiitams under GAAP;

* Plus or minus our proportionate share of adjustmeéntiuding depreciation and amortization of dejaiele operating properties,
unconsolidated partnerships and joint ventureseflect funds from operations on the same basig); a

* Plus or minus adjustments for depreciation and #mation and gains/(losses) on sales of depreciapbkrating properties, pl
impairments on depreciable operating propertiesi aoncontrolling interests in consolidated affdistrelated to discontinu
operations.

In calculating FFO, the Company excludes net incattgbutable to noncontrolling interests in thee@giing Partnership, which 1
Company believes is consistent with standard imgystactice for REITs that operate through an UPR&tucture. The Company belier
that it is important to present FFO on ancasverted basis since all of the Common Units mated by the Company are redeemable
one-for-one basis for shares of its Common Stock.

The following table sets forth the Company's FF@ BRO per share ($ in thousands, except per shavargs):

Three Months Ended March 31,

2012 2011

Funds from operations:
Net income $ 18,33: $ 12,44
Net (income) attributable to noncontrolling inteéseim consolidated affiliates (184) (123)
Depreciation and amortization of real estate assets 37,82( 33,12:
Unconsolidated affiliates:

Depreciation and amortization of real estate assets 2,09¢ 2,09t

Impairment of real estate assets 1,00z —
Discontinued operations:

Depreciation and amortization of real estate assets 152 25€

(Gains) on disposition of depreciable properties (5,139 —
Funds from operations 54,08 47,79
Dividends on Preferred Stock (627) (1,677
Funds from operations available for common stockhalers $ 53,46( $ 46,11«
Funds from operations available for common stockhalers per share $ 0.7¢C % 0.61
Weighted average shares outstanding) 76,69¢ 75,79:

(1) Includes assumed conversion of all potentiallytdikiCommon Stock equivaler

In addition, the Company believes net operatingoine from continuing operations (“NOI"and same property NOI are usi
supplemental measures of the Companptoperty operating performance because such anetriovide a performance measure of
revenues and expenses directly involved in ownéa estate assets and provides a perspective natdiately apparent from net income
FFO. The Company defines NOI as rental and otheemaes from continuing operations, less rental grtypand other expenses fr
continuing operations. The Company defines cash &N Ol less straight line rent and lease ternondies. Other REITs may use diffel
methodologies to calculate NOI and same property. NO
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Our same property portfolio consisted of 292 invier office, industrial and retail properties engrassing 26.9 milliorsquare feet th
were wholly owned during the entirety of the pesquesented (from January 1, 2011 to March 31, 20l our most recent prior perio
report, our 2011 Annual Report, our same propeaotgfplio consisted of 289 igervice office, industrial and retail propertiec@mpassin
26.2 million square feet that were wholly ownedidgrthe entirety of the periods presented thergion{ January 1, 2010 tbecember 3:
2011). The change in our same property portfolis @ue to the addition of one office property engassing 0.3 milliorsquare feet acquir
during 2010 and three newly developed office prigerencompassing 0.5 million square feet placeseivice during 2010 offset by th
removal of one office property encompassing 0.lionilsquare feet qualifying for discontinued op&nag during 2012 .

Rental and other revenues related to propertiegwmmir same property portfolio were $16.4 milliand $3.9 million for theéhree month
ended March 31, 2012 and 201respectively. Rental property and other expernslased to properties not in our same propertyfpliotwere
$8.5 million and $2.4 million for the three mon#rsded March 31, 2012 and 2011 , respectively.

The following table sets forth the Company’s NOtil@ame property NOI:

Three Months Ended March 31,

2012 2011

Income from continuing operations before dispositia of condominiums and equity in earnings/(losses¥ o
unconsolidated affiliates $ 13,21: $ 10,39¢
Other (income) (2,230 (1,879
Interest expense 24,80z 23,54
General and administrative expense 9,67: 7,792
Depreciation and amortization expense 38,36: 33,55¢
Net operating income from continuing operations 83,81¢ 73,417
Less — non same property and other net operataayria 7,922 1,574
Total same property net operating income from contiuing operations $ 75,897 $ 71,84:
Rental and other revenues $ 129,94: $ 114,35:
Rental property and other expenses 46,12« 40,93«
Total net operating income from continuing operatims 83,81¢ 73,417
Less — non same property and other net operatoaria 7,92 1,57¢
Total same property net operating income from contiuing operations $ 75897 $ 71,84:
Total same property net operating income from cwiig operations $ 75,897 $ 71,84:
Less — straight line rent and lease terminatios fee 4,00¢ 3,60t
Same property cash net operating income from contixing operations $ 71,897 $ 68,23t
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ITEM 3. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES AB OUT MARKET RISK

The effects of potential changes in interest raresdiscussed below. Our market risk discussioludes “forward-looking statements”
and represents an estimate of possible changesdrinadiue or future earnings that would occur asagnypothetical future movements
interest rates. Actual future results may differtenially from those presented. Sekein 2. Management's Discussion and Analys
Financial Condition and Results of Operations -ulidity and Capital Resourcesihd the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statemfents
description of our accounting policies and othéorimation related to these financial instruments.

We borrow funds at a combination of fixed and Malearates. Our debt consists of secured and uresgdoingterm financings, unsecur
debt securities, loans and credit facilities, whigpically bear interest at fixed rates althougimedoans bear interest at variable rates.
interest rate risk management objectives are td time impact of interest rate changes on earnamgs cash flows and to lower our ove
borrowing costs. To achieve these objectives, ftne to time we enter into interest rate hedge remt$ such as collars, swaps, caps
treasury lock agreements in order to mitigate atgrest rate risk with respect to various debtrimsents. We generally do not hold or is
these derivative contracts for trading or specuagiurposes.

At March 31, 2012 , we had $1,285.9 milliprincipal amount of fixed rate debt outstandinge Hstimated aggregate fair market valt
this debt was $1,378.3 millionlf interest rates had been 100 basis points hidhe aggregate fair market value of our fixec bt woul
have been approximately $18.6 milliwer. If interest rates had been 100 basis pdawter, the aggregate fair market value of our fixed
debt would have been approximately $19.3 millioghleir.

At March 31, 2012 , we had $393.1 milliofi variable rate debt outstanding not protectednkgrest rate hedge contracts. The estin
aggregate fair market value of this debt was $3&tlBon . If the weighted average interest rate on thisabéde rate debt had been 100 b
points higher, the aggregate fair market value wf variable rate debt would have decreased by appetely $26.9 millionand annuz
interest expense would increase $3.9 millidhthe weighted average interest rate on thisaléde rate debt had been 100 basis points l¢
the aggregate fair market value of our variable @bt would have increased by approximately $ad@ldon and annual interest expe
would decrease $3.9 million .

At March 31, 2012 , we had floating-to-fixed intstreate swaps with respect to an aggregate of §288lion LIBOR-based borrowing
These swaps effectively fix the underlying LIBOReraat 1.678% If LIBOR interest rates increase or decrease @y hasis points, tl
aggregate fair market value of the swaps at Malct2812 would increase by $13.0 million or decrdas&14.8 million, respectively. We a
exposed to certain losses in the event of nonpedoce by the counterparties, which are major firnastitutions, under the swaps. '
regularly evaluate the financial condition of omuanterparties using publicly available informati@ased on this review, we currently ex|
the counterparties to perform fully under the swaimwvever, if a counterparty defaults on its oliglas under a swap, we could be requ
to pay the full rates on the applicable debt, éf/ench rates were in excess of the rate in théraoh

ITEM 4. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

SEC rules require us to maintain disclosure costold procedures that are designed to ensurenfbamniation required to be discloset
our annual and periodic reports filed with the SECecorded, processed, summarized and reportddnviiie time periods specified in
SEC's rules and forms. The Company's CEO and CH® bancluded that the disclosure controls and phaws of the Company and
Operating Partnership were each effective at tideoéthe period covered by this Quarterly Report.

SEC rules also require us to establish and maintaérnal control over financial reporting designedprovide reasonable assure
regarding the reliability of financial reporting cathe preparation of financial statements for exdepurposes in accordance with gene
accepting accounting principles. There were no gharin internal control over financial reportingridg the three months endétarch 31
2012that materially affected, or are reasonably likelymaterially affect, the Company's internal cohtrneer financial reporting. There we
also no changes in internal control over financggdorting during the three months ended March 81,22hat materially affected, or ¢
reasonably likely to materially affect, the OpangtPartnership's internal control over financiglasing.
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PART Il
ITEM 2. UNREGISTERED SALES OF EQUITY SECURITES AND USE OF PROCEEDS

During the first quarter of 2012 , the Company &ban aggregate of 2,088ares of Common Stock to holders of Common Unitké
Operating Partnership upon the redemption of arikmber of Common Units in private offerings exeriptn the registration requireme
pursuant to Section 4(2) of the Securities Act.Eat the holders of Common Units was an accreditegstor under Rule 501 of t
Securities Act. The resale of such shares wastezgésby the Company under the Securities Act.

ITEM 5. OTHER EVENTS

Stock Ownership Guidelines

Our compensation and governance committee haslisb&bthe following stock ownership guidelines:

Position Multiple (in dollars)

Chief Executive Officer 6x Base Salary

Other Executive Officers 5x Base Salary
Divisional Vice Presidents and Other Officers 2x Base Salary

Directors 3x Base Annual Retainer

Our directors and officers may not directly or ieditly engage in any transactions pursuant to whlieres of common stock or units
limited partnership interest in Highwoods Realtynited Partnership, our operating partnership, ald in margin accounts or otherw
pledged to secure personal loans or lines of credisimilar forms of indebtedness without the prommsent of the compensation
governance committee. None of our officers or doechas pledged shares of common stock as callagxcept that Mr. Anderson pledc
400,000 operating partnership units and 65,000eshaf common stock to secure a personal line afitcpgior to adoption of this policy
20009.

Compensation of Executive Officers

Annual Non-Equity I ncentive Program. In 2011, all of our officers, including Named Exé&ea Officers, participated in our annual non-

equity incentive program pursuant to which theyeveligible to earn cash payments (which were paislarch 2012) based on a percen
of their annual base salary in effect for DecenfiErl. Under this component of our executive comgigms program, officers are eligible
earn additional cash compensation to the extertifspperformancebased metrics are achieved during the most receathpleted year. Tl
position held by each officer has a target annneéntive percentage. For 2011, the target anneahiive percentage was 130% for
Fritsch, 95% for Mr. Harris, 90% for Mr. Stevensdarb% for Mr. Miller. In addition to consideringdtpay practices of our peer grouj
determining each officer's annual incentive peraget the committee also considers the individufiteafs ability to influence our over.
performance. The more senior the position withen¢bmpany, the greater the portion of compensdhtianvaries with performance.

The amount an officer may earn under the annualagpiity incentive compensation program is the prodifithe target annual incenti
percentage times an “actual performance factahich can range from zero to 200%. The actual perémce factor depends upon
relationship between actual performance in speaifé@s at each of our divisions and predetermioatsgFor Messrs. Fritsch, Harris, Ste\
and Miller, who served as corporate executivesndufi011, the actual performance factor was basetttegoals and criteria applied to
performance as a whole. Participants in our annoalequity incentive program receive quarterly statetsi¢iroughout the year that illustr
our forecasted and rferecasted performance, which we believe is an napo tool in keeping our employees focused onedhg ou
strategic and operating goals.

The components and weighting of each year's metibih are set by the compensation and governemeenittee prior to or near t
beginning of each year as part of our budgetingsirategic planning process, are intended to gfaseitch our company's overall opera
and financial goals and provide our officers witredt “line of sight”to focus their individual and collective efforts thre achievement of t
metrics.

The performance criteria, which are equally weightae the following:

» per share funds from operations (“FF@Xcluding any unusual charges or credits that ncayr
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e net operating income (on a division-tixdsion basis) excluding any unusual charges edits that may occur and including a ca|
charge/credit applied with respect to any investnaetivity; and

e average occupancy (on a divisiontiyision basis’
The compensation and governance committee sethtlick target and maximum levels with respect tthes the factors. The followir

table sets forth information about the performabased metrics under our annual rempsty incentive program, including our act
performance, for 2011

Actual 2011
Factor Performance Threshold (50%) Target (100%) Maximum (200%)
Per Share FFO $2.58 $2.44 $2.52 $2.62
Net Operating Income 0.8% Growth 0.5% Growth 3.0% Growth 7.0% Growth
Average Occupancy 89.2% 87% 91.5% 94%

If the threshold level is not satisfied with resptea particular factor, the actual performancgdawould be zero with respect to t
factor. If performance exceeds the threshold Ibwtldoes not satisfy the target level, the actealgpmance factor would range on a slic
scale between 50% and 100% with respect to thabrfalf performance is between the target level #mg maximum level, the acti
performance factor would range on a sliding scaleawben 100% and 200% with respect to that factbe performance factor used
determine the amount an executive could earn irl 20fder the annual nagguity incentive program was the average of theetHactor:
Notwithstanding the formulas described above, mmpmensation and governance committee has retaireedliscretion and flexibility 1
increase or decrease the actual performance fadtorespect to any particular year and/or anyipaldr officer to more appropriately refle
in the committee's sole judgment, actual perforrmantarket conditions, unanticipated circumstanoesaiher factorsThe compensation a
governance committee did not exercise its righhtalify the actual performance factor for any of Meemed Executive Officers in 2011. |
corporate executives in 2011, the performance faatoder the noequity incentive program were 165.3% for the Pear8H-FO facto
56.8% for the Net Operating Income factor and 74fé%ethe Average Occupancy factor, which resultecain overall actual performar
factor of 98.8%. For additional information regagliour actual 2011 performance, see our 2011 AriRapbrt on Form 10-K.

The following table sets forth information abou ferformance-based metrics under our annual noityeégcentive program for 2012:

Factor Threshold (50%) Target (100%) Maximum (200%)
Per Share FFO* $2.61 $2.66 $2.77

Net Operating Income 0.5% Growth 2.0% Growth 5.0% Growth
Average Occupancy 87% 90.5% 93%

*  To the extent the dilutive effects of dispositi@m equity issuances are more or less than $0rl€hpee, such differences will be excluc

While the target and maximum levels for the Net @prg Income and Average Occupancy factors aghthji lower in 2012 than
2011, the threshold, target and maximum levelgHerPer Share FFO factor are higher in 2012 thdri.28s a result, the probable ove
actual performance factor for corporate executiveger the 2012 program is expected to be simildh¢o98.8% overall actual performa
factor for 2011.

Equity I ncentive Compensation-Time-Based Restricted Stock. The compensation and governance committee belibatshe issuance
time-based restricted stock is an important redentdol and serves to deter our officers from segkither employment opportunities. Time-
based restricted stock vests ratably on an anrass lover a fouyear term. If an officer leaves our employ at aimyet before the four
anniversary of the date of grant, unvested shailebevforfeited upon termination of employment eptin the event of death, disability o
otherwise provided under our retirement plan. Ifofficer dies, unvested shares of tiln@sed restricted stock will automatically vestar
officer becomes disabled, unvested shares of tiased restricted stock will become nfonfeitable and continue to vest according to
terms of their original grants. Except as set lfointthe next sentence, dividends received on tamed restricted stock are nfomfeitable an
are paid at the same rate and on the same date stsaes of our common stock. Commencing in 2018 weispect to shares of tinbase!
restricted stock issued to our chief executiveceffiand subject to any delay in payment that woeddlt in adverse tax consequences L
Section 409A of the Internal Revenue Code, dividendl accumulate and be payable only if and toaktnt the shares vest.
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Equity Incentive Compensation-Total Return-Based Restricted Stock. The compensation and governance committee belidwe
issuance of total returbased restricted stock is an important retentianl tbat incentivizes our officers to concentrateithefforts ol
generating and sustaining long-term stockholdene/aDne of our principal goals is to provide owrckholders with attractive risadjuste:
returns on their investment through the consispayiment of quarterly dividends and stock price apiation. Total return is defined as
sum of stock price appreciation plus reinvestedleinds over the stock value at the beginning ofihy@icable period.

Each year, the committee sets minimum, target aaximmum payout levels based on the probable expdotadireturn of our commc
stock over three years using an analysis of albhical threeyear total return periods since our company'sahtublic offering in 1994. Ea
year, the thre-year total return performance for the minimum payleuel is determined such that the probabilityachievement based
historical threeyear total return performance is generally 60% diher words, there is a 40% chance that the mimintevel will not bi
achieved and the shares will be forfeited, excepitherwise described below.) The thyear total return performance for the maximum |
is determined such that the probability of achiegetibased on historical three-year total returfioperance is generally 10%.

Under this probability achievement formula, sharkwotal returnbased restricted stock will generally vest onlyhe extent our absolt
total return for the applicable thrgear period is at least 22% with respect to shesmsed in 2011 and at least 17% with respect toes
issued in 2012. Accordingly, if our absolute tateturn does not at least meet the minimum threstadldf the total returripased restricte
stock will be forfeited at the end of the period¢cept as otherwise described below. The percerdagmal returnbased restricted stock tl
vests will range between 50% and 100% to the exientbsolute total return ranges between 22% d#6 with respect to shares issue
2011 and 17% and 36% with respect to shares issug012. All of the totaketurn based restricted stock will vest and we slue a
amount of additional shares up to 150% of the pabtotal returrbased restricted stock award to the extent ourlatestotal return rang
between 44% and 88% with respect to shares issu2@llil and 36% and 81% with respect to sharesdsau#012. These additional share
any, would be fully vested when issued. Notwithdtag the foregoing, if our total return is not aat 22% with respect to shares issut
2011 and 17% for shares issued in 2012 but ouf tetarn index exceeds 100% of the peer group tatairn index, then 50% of the tc
return-based restricted stock will vest at the eftthe applicable period.

If an officer leaves our employ at any time beftiie end of the three-year cycle, all of the towumbased restricted stock will
forfeited except in the event of death, disabilityas otherwise provided under our retirement dfean officer dies or becomes disabled, a
rata portion of the total return-based restrictietls would become noferfeitable and continue to vest according to #vens of their origin:
grants.

Except as set forth in the next sentence, divideadsived on restricted stock are rforfeitable and are paid at the same rate and €
same date as on shares of our common stock. Conmgeinc2012 with respect to shares of total rethased restricted stock issued to
chief executive officer and subject to any delaypayment that would result in adverse tax consezpennder Section 409A of the Intel
Revenue Code, dividends will accumulate and belgayanly if and to the extent the shares vest.

Employee Benefits and Perquisites. Each officer receives the same compaurige benefits as are generally available to aleotalarie
employees, such as short- and Idegn disability insurance, basic life insurance atidibility for supplemental health and life insunce
access to flexible health care reimbursement adscamd 401(k) matching. Officers participate in Hzene companwide health insuran
program, except that we pay an officer's familyngitan. Additionally, officers are entitled to receiadditional annual perquisites not wic
available to all salaried employees, typically isesuch as a vehicle allowance and reimbursemenieimonal financial consulting servi
and the costs of a physical exam not otherwisereaviy our health insurance. We also reimbursedAvitsch on a tax grosseg basis fc
supplemental life insurance coverage during 20his Benefit ended in 2011.
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ITEM 6. EXHIBITS

Exhibit
Number Description
10.1 Credit Agreement, dated as of January 11, 2012amy among the Company, the Operating Partnership the
Subsidiaries named therein and the Lenders nanedith(filed as part of the Company's Current ReparForm 8K
dated January 11, 2012)
12.1 Statement re: Computation of Ratios of the Company
12.2 Statement re: Computation of Ratios of the Opegafiartnership
31.1 Certification of CEO Pursuant to Section 302 of 8z@bane©xley Act for the Company
31.2 Certification of CFO Pursuant to Section 302 of #sbane®©xley Act for the Company
31.3 Certification of CEO Pursuant to Section 302 of 8s@bane©xley Act for the Operating Partnership
31.4 Certification of CFO Pursuant to Section 302 of #aebane®©xley Act for the Operating Partnership
32.1 Certification of CEO Pursuant to Section 906 of 8abane©xley Act for the Company
32.2 Certification of CFO Pursuant to Section 906 of §abane®©xley Act for the Company
32.3 Certification of CEO Pursuant to Section 906 of 8a@bane®©xley Act for the Operating Partnership
32.4 Certification of CFO Pursuant to Section 906 of §abane®©xley Act for the Operating Partnership

101.INS XBRL Instance Document

101.SCH XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document

101.CAL XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Docutne
101.DEF XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition LinklsaBocument
101.LAB XBRL Extension Labels Linkbase

101.PRE XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation LagébDocument
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Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgh Act of 1934, each of the registrants has dalysed this report to be signed o
behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized

Highwoods Properties, Inc.

By: /s/ Terry L. Stevens

Terry L. Stevens
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

Highwoods Realty Limited Partnership
By: Highwoods Properties, Inc., its sole genegatmer

By: Is/ Terry L. Stevens

Terry L. Stevens
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

Date: May 1, 2012
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HIGHWOODS PROPERTIES, INC.
RATIO OF EARNINGS TO FIXED CHARGES AND
RATIO OF EARNINGS TO COMBINED FIXED CHARGES AND
PREFERRED STOCK DIVIDENDS

Earnings:
Income from continuing operations before equitgamnings of unconsolidated affiliates
Fixed charges
Capitalized interest
Distributions of earnings from unconsolidated &fiés
Total earnings

Fixed charges and Preferred Stock dividends:
Contractual interest expense
Amortization of deferred financing costs
Financing obligations interest expense
Capitalized interest
Interest component of rental expense

Total fixed charges
Preferred Stock dividends

Total fixed charges and Preferred Stock dividends

Ratio of earnings to fixed charges

Ratio of earnings to combined fixed charges and Pferred Stock dividends

Exhibit 12.1

Three Months
Ended

March 31, 2012

13,271
25,27t
(101)
1,38¢

39,83¢

23,94¢
90z
(48)
101
371

25,274
627

25,901

1.5¢

1.54




Exhibit 12.2

HIGHWOODS REALTY LIMITED PARTNERSHIP
RATIO OF EARNINGS TO FIXED CHARGES AND
RATIO OF EARNINGS TO COMBINED FIXED CHARGES AND
PREFERRED UNIT DISTRIBUTIONS

Three Months
Ended

March 31, 2012

Earnings:
Income from continuing operations before equitgamnings of unconsolidated affiliates $ 13,27,
Fixed charges 25,27¢
Capitalized interest (103
Distributions of earnings from unconsolidated &fiés 1,381
Total earnings $ 39,83:

Fixed charges and Preferred Unit distributions:

Contractual interest expense $ 23,94¢
Amortization of deferred financing costs 90z
Financing obligations interest expense (48)
Capitalized interest 101
Interest component of rental expense 371
Total fixed charges 25,27¢
Preferred Unit distributions 627
Total fixed charges and Preferred Unit distributions $ 25,90:
Ratio of earnings to fixed charges 1.5¢

Ratio of earnings to combined fixed charges and Pferred Unit distributions _ 154



Exhibit 31.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO SECTION 302
OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT

I, Edward J. Fritsch, certify that:

1. I have reviewed this Quarterly Report on FofivQlof Highwoods Properties, In

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notatomny untrue statement of a material fact ortamstate a material fact necessary
to make the statements made, in light of the cistances under which such statements were madmisleading with respect to tl
period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememtd other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the Registrant as of, andifi@ periods presented in this
report;

4. The Registrant’s other certifying officers drate responsible for establishing and maintaimiisglosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&)1%nd internal control over financial reportirag defined in Exchange Act
Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the Registrard have:

(a) designed such disclosure controls and proceduresaused such disclosure controls and procedurés tesigned under ¢
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the Registrant, including its consolidasubsidiaries, is made kno
to us by others within those entities, particulatlying the period in which this report is beingpared;

(b) designed such internal control over financial répgr or caused such internal control over finahoégorting to be design
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assaraegarding the reliability of financial repogirand the preparation
financial statements for external purposes in at@moce with generally accepted accounting principles

(c) evaluated the effectiveness of the RegistsadiSclosure controls and procedures and preseémtdéds report our conclusio
about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls procedures, as of the end of the period coveydtis report based on st
evaluation; and

(d) disclosed in this report any change in the iRemnt’s internal control over financial reporting thatcomed during th
Registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the Regidgs fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annupbrg that has material
affected, or is reasonably likely to materiallyeaftf, the Registrant’s internal control over finaheceporting; and

5. The Registrarg’ other certifying officers and | have discloseasdd on our most recent evaluation of internalrobitver financie
reporting, to the Registrant’s auditors and the in@mmittee of the Registrast’Board of Directors (or persons performing
equivalent functions):

(a) all significant deficiencies and material weaknesisethe design or operation of internal controgofinancial reporting whic
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the Regig’s ability to record, process, summarize and refiaincial information
and

(b) any fraud, whether or not material, that imesl management or other employees who have aismgmtfrole in the Registranst’
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: May 1, 2012

/s/ Edward J. Fritsch

Edward J. Fritsch
President and Chief Executive Officer




Exhibit 31.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO SECTION 302
OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT

I, Terry L. Stevens, certify that:

1. I have reviewed this Quarterly Report on FofivQlof Highwoods Properties, In

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notatomny untrue statement of a material fact ortamstate a material fact necessary
to make the statements made, in light of the cistances under which such statements were madmisleading with respect to tl
period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememtd other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the Registrant as of, andifi@ periods presented in this
report;

4. The Registrant’s other certifying officers drate responsible for establishing and maintaimiisglosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&)1%nd internal control over financial reportirag defined in Exchange Act
Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the Registrard have:

(a) designed such disclosure controls and proceduresaused such disclosure controls and procedurés tesigned under ¢
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the Registrant, including its consolidasubsidiaries, is made kno
to us by others within those entities, particulatlying the period in which this report is beingpared;

(b) designed such internal control over financial répgr or caused such internal control over finahoégorting to be design
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assaraegarding the reliability of financial repogirand the preparation
financial statements for external purposes in at@moce with generally accepted accounting principles

(c) evaluated the effectiveness of the RegistsadiSclosure controls and procedures and preseémtdéds report our conclusio
about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls procedures, as of the end of the period coveydtis report based on st
evaluation; and

(d) disclosed in this report any change in the iRemnt’s internal control over financial reporting thatcomed during th
Registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the Regidgs fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annupbrg that has material
affected, or is reasonably likely to materiallyeaftf, the Registrant’s internal control over finaheceporting; and

5. The Registrarg’ other certifying officers and | have discloseasdd on our most recent evaluation of internalrobitver financie
reporting, to the Registrant’s auditors and the in@mmittee of the Registrast’Board of Directors (or persons performing
equivalent functions):

(a) all significant deficiencies and material weaknesisethe design or operation of internal controgofinancial reporting whic
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the Regig’s ability to record, process, summarize and refiaincial information
and

(b) any fraud, whether or not material, that imesl management or other employees who have aismgmtfrole in the Registranst’
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: May 1, 2012

/sl Terry L. Stevens

Terry L. Stevens
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer




Exhibit 31.3

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO SECTION 302
OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT

I, Edward J. Fritsch, certify that:

1. I have reviewed this Quarterly Report on FofvQlof Highwoods Realty Limited Partnerst

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notatomny untrue statement of a material fact ortamstate a material fact necessary
to make the statements made, in light of the cistances under which such statements were madmisleading with respect to tl
period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememtd other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the Registrant as of, andifi@ periods presented in this
report;

4. The Registrant’s other certifying officers drate responsible for establishing and maintaimiisglosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&)1%nd internal control over financial reportirag defined in Exchange Act
Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the Registrard have:

(a) designed such disclosure controls and proceduresaused such disclosure controls and procedurés tesigned under ¢
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the Registrant, including its consolidasubsidiaries, is made kno
to us by others within those entities, particulatlying the period in which this report is beingpared;

(b) designed such internal control over financial répgr or caused such internal control over finahoégorting to be design
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assaraegarding the reliability of financial repogirand the preparation
financial statements for external purposes in at@moce with generally accepted accounting principles

(c) evaluated the effectiveness of the RegistsadiSclosure controls and procedures and preseémtdéds report our conclusio
about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls procedures, as of the end of the period coveydtis report based on st
evaluation; and

(d) disclosed in this report any change in the iRemnt’s internal control over financial reporting thatcomed during th
Registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the Regidgs fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annupbrg that has material
affected, or is reasonably likely to materiallyeaftf, the Registrant’s internal control over finaheceporting; and

5. The Registrarg’ other certifying officers and | have discloseasdd on our most recent evaluation of internalrobitver financie
reporting, to the Registrant’s auditors and the in@mmittee of the Registrast’Board of Directors (or persons performing
equivalent functions):

(a) all significant deficiencies and material weaknesisethe design or operation of internal controgofinancial reporting whic
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the Regig’s ability to record, process, summarize and refiaincial information
and

(b) any fraud, whether or not material, that imesl management or other employees who have aismgmtfrole in the Registranst’
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: May 1, 2012

/s/ Edward J. Fritsch

Edward J. Fritsch
President and Chief Executive Officer of the Geheratner




Exhibit 31.4

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO SECTION 302
OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT

I, Terry L. Stevens, certify that:

1.
2.

| have reviewed this Quarterly Report on FofvQlof Highwoods Realty Limited Partnerst

Based on my knowledge, this report does notatomny untrue statement of a material fact ortamstate a material fact necessary
to make the statements made, in light of the cistances under which such statements were madmisleading with respect to tl
period covered by this report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statemeamd other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the Registrant as of, andifi@ periods presented in this
report;

The Registrant’s other certifying officers drate responsible for establishing and maintainiisglosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&)1%nd internal control over financial reportirag defined in Exchange Act
Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the Registrard have:

(a) designed such disclosure controls and proceduresaused such disclosure controls and procedurés tesigned under ¢
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the Registrant, including its consolidasubsidiaries, is made kno
to us by others within those entities, particulatlying the period in which this report is beingpared;

(b) designed such internal control over financial répgr or caused such internal control over finahoégorting to be design
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assaraegarding the reliability of financial repogirand the preparation
financial statements for external purposes in at@moce with generally accepted accounting principles

(c) evaluated the effectiveness of the RegistsadiSclosure controls and procedures and preseémtdéds report our conclusio
about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls procedures, as of the end of the period coveydtis report based on st
evaluation; and

(d) disclosed in this report any change in the iRemnt’s internal control over financial reporting thatcomed during th
Registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the Regidgs fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annupbrg that has material
affected, or is reasonably likely to materiallyeaftf, the Registrant’s internal control over finaheceporting; and

The Registrang’ other certifying officers and | have disclosedsdd on our most recent evaluation of internalrobotver financizs
reporting, to the Registrant’s auditors and the in@mmittee of the Registrast’Board of Directors (or persons performing
equivalent functions):

(a) all significant deficiencies and material weaknesisethe design or operation of internal controgofinancial reporting whic
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the Regig’s ability to record, process, summarize and refiaincial information
and

(b) any fraud, whether or not material, that imesl management or other employees who have aismgmtfrole in the Registranst’
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: May 1, 2012

/sl Terry L. Stevens

Terry L. Stevens
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officetha
General Partner



Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO SECTION 906
OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT

In connection with the Quarterly Report of Highwsd@roperties, Inc. (the “Company”) on Form 10-Q tleg period endetarch 31
2012 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Cimsion on the date hereof (the “Report!;),Edward J. Fritsch, President and C
Executive Officer of the Company, certify, pursuamil8 U.S.C. § 1350, as adopted pursuant to $9fte Sarbane®xley Act of 2002, tha

1) The Report fully complies with the requirementsSefction 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeof 1934, as amended; ¢

2) The information contained in the Report fairly prets, in all material respects, the financial ctadiand results of operations of
Company.

/s/ Edward J. Fritsch

Edward J. Fritsch
President and Chief Executive Officer

May 1, 2012




Exhibit 32.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO SECTION 906
OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT

In connection with the Quarterly Report of Highwsd@roperties, Inc. (the “Company”) on Form 10-Q tleg period endetarch 31
2012 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Cimsion on the date hereof (the “Report))Terry L. Stevens, Senior Vice President
Chief Financial Officer of the Company, certify,rpuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1350, as adopted pursua8ta06 of the Sarbané3xley Act of
2002, that:

1) The Report fully complies with the requirementsSefction 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeof 1934, as amended; ¢
2) The information contained in the Report fairly prets, in all material respects, the financial ctadiand results of operations of
Company.

/sl Terry L. Stevens

Terry L. Stevens
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

May 1, 2012




Exhibit 32.3

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO SECTION 906
OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT

In connection with the Quarterly Report of Highwsodealty Limited Partnership (the “Operating Pathip”) on Form 109 for the
period ended March 31, 2012 as filed with the S&esrand Exchange Commission on the date herbef“@eport”),I, Edward J. Fritscl
President and Chief Executive Officer of Highwod®perties, Inc., general partner of the OperaBaginership, certify, pursuant to
U.S.C. 8§ 1350, as adopted pursuant to 8 906 dbéntbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

1) The Report fully complies with the requirementsSefction 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeof 1934, as amended; ¢

2) The information contained in the Report fairly prets, in all material respects, the financial ctadiand results of operations of
Operating Partnership.

/s/ Edward J. Fritsch

Edward J. Fritsch
President and Chief Executive Officer of the Geheratner

May 1, 2012




Exhibit 32.4

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO SECTION 906
OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT

In connection with the Quarterly Report of Highwsodealty Limited Partnership (the “Operating Pathip”) on Form 109 for the
period ended March 31, 2012 as filed with the Séearand Exchange Commission on the date herbef“@eport”),l, Terry L. Steven:
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial OfficEHgghwoods Properties, Inc., general partner ef@perating Partnership, certify, purst
to 18 U.S.C. § 1350, as adopted pursuant to § 8fedsarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

1) The Report fully complies with the requirementsSefction 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeof 1934, as amended; ¢

2) The information contained in the Report fairly prets, in all material respects, the financial ctadiand results of operations of
Operating Partnership.

/sl Terry L. Stevens

Terry L. Stevens
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officeth@ General Partner

May 1, 2012




